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lxdfnog hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= 
aa/dxn, lh=lk=cf]= aS; 148, sf&df*f}+, g]kfn 

kmf]g g+= 5245090 

 

 

ldlt M 2077/03/03 

lk|o z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?, 

 

ldlt 2077 cfiff( 1 ut] a;]sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}&s g+= 253 sf] lg)f{ofg';f/ o; sDkgLsf] %lJj;f} 

jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;ef 2077 cfiff( 29 ut] ;f]djf/sf lbg ljxfg 11=00 ah] a:g]] ePsf] x'+bf ;DalGwt 

sfg"g adf]lhd To;sf] ;"rgf b}lgs klqsfx?df k|sflzt eO;s]sf] hfgsf/L lb+b} tT;DaGwL ljj/)fx? ;lxtsf] 

of] k'l:tsf oxf¤x? ;dIf k&fPsf] %' . 

      

 

 

 cf!fn] 

       

 ========================= 

 w'j k|;fb Gof}kfg] 

 sDkgL ;lrj 
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lxdfnog hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= 
aa/dxn, lh=lk=cf]= aS; 148, sf&df*f}+, g]kfn 

kmf]g g+= 5245090 

k|j]z-kq          

z]o/wgLsf] gfd======================================================z]o/ k|df)f kq g+======================== z]o/wgL 

g+======================= jf lxtu|fxL g+======================z]o/wgLsf] ;lx==============================z]o/ 

;+Vof=======================lxdfnog hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]*sf] 2077 cfiff( 29 ut] ;f]djf/sf lbg x'g] 

%lJj;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf pkl:yt x'g hf/L ul/Psf] k|j]z kq .  

gf]^ M z]o/wgL cfkm}n] vfnL sf]i&x? eg{'xf]nf . -;ef sIfdf k|j]z ug{ of] k|j]z kq k|:t't ug{' clgjfo{ % . _  

 

             
 =============================== 

  w|'j k|;fb Gof}kfg] 

  sDkgL ;lrj 

 ============================================================================================================================================================

=k|f]S;L-kmf/d 
>L ;+rfns ;ldlt 

lxdfnog hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= 

aa/dxn, sf&df)*F} .  

 

   ljifo M k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]s]f af/] .  

 

dxfzo,  

=============================lhNnf======================================g=kf=÷uf=lj=;= j*f g+=============a:g] d÷xfdL================= n] To; 

sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] 2077 ;fn cfiff( 29 ut] ;f]djf/sf lbg x'g] %lJj;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf d/xfdL 

:jod pkl:yt eO{ %nkmn tyf lg)f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsfn] pQm ;efdf d]/f]/xfd|f] tkm{jf^ efu lng tyf dtbfg 

ug{sf nflu ======================================== lhNnf ===================== g=kf=÷uf=lj=;= j*f g+=========a:g] To; sDkgLsf 

z]o/jfnf >L==================================================z]o/ k|df)fkq g+====================== jf lxtu|fxL g+= ===============nfO{ 

d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|lglglw dgf]gLt u/L k&fPsf] %'÷%f} .   

 lgj]bs  

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] JoQmLsf], b:tvt M  

x:tfIf/sf] gd'gfM gfd M  

z]o/ k|df)fkq g+=M &]ufgf M  

z]o/wgL g+=M lxtu|fxL g+=M 

lxtu|fxL g+=M z]o/ k|df)fkq g+= M  

ldltM ls=g++========= b]lv===========;Dd 

 z]o/ ;+Vof M  

gf]^ M PseGbf al( k|f]S;Lsf] gfd pNn]v u/]df / z]o/wgL jfx]ssf] JoQmLnfO{ k|f]S;L d's// u/]df k|f]S;L kmf/fd /@ 

ul/g]% . 
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;fwf/)f ;ef ;DaGwL ;fdfGo hfgsf/L 

 

1= xfnsf] ljZjJofkL sf]le*-19 dxfdf/LnfO{ b[i^Lut u/]/ cgnfO{g ldl^édf tf]lsPsf] ;dodf g} ;a} 

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ cgnfO{g pkl:yt eO{ ;xof]u ul/lbg'x'g ljgd| cg'/f]w ul/G% . ;fy} oyf 

;dodf o; sDkgLjf^ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ Online Link k&fpg] Joj:yf ul/g] % . ef}lts pkl:ylt 

x'g rfxfg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] clgjfo{ ?kdf df:ssf] k|of]u ug{ kg]{% . 

 

2= gfjfns jf ljlIfKt z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af^ sDkgLsf] z]o/ nut lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf btf{ ePsf] 

JolQmn] ;efdf efu lng, dtbfg ug{ jf k|ltlglw tf]Sg kfp¤g]%g\ .  

 

3= ;+o'Qm?kdf lnPsf] z]o/sf] xsdf z]o/ nut lstfadf klxn] gfd pNn]v ePsf] JolQmn] jf ;j{;Ddltaf^ 

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]s]f Ps JolQmn] dfq ;efdf efu lng / dtbfg ug{ kfpg]%g\ .  

 

5= %nkmnsf] ljifo ljljw lzif{s ;DaGwdf z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] %nkmn ug{ rfx]sf] ljifo jf/] ;ef x'g 

eGbf sDtLdf 7 lbg cufj} cWoIfnfO{ lnlvt ?kdf sDkgLsf] yfkfuf+p l:yt sfof{nodf lbg'kg{]% jf 

Email: dhruba@hgi.com.np df k&fpg ;Sg' x'g]% . 

 

6= z]o/wgLx?n] JoQm u/]sf] dGtAo jf k|Zgx?sf ;DaGwdf ;efklt jf lghn] tf]s]sf] JolQmaf^ ;fd'lxs 

?kdf pQ/ lbOg]% .  

 

7= cGo hfgsf/Lsf nflu sDkgLsf] yfkfuf+p l:yt sfof{nodf sfof{no ;doleq ;Dks{ /fVgx'g ;a} z]o/wgL 

dxfg'efjx?nfO{ cg'/f]w ul/G% . ;fy} cfjZos hfgsf/Lsf] nflu df]jfO{n g++= 98951051753 jf 

9802032371 df ;Dks{ /fVg ;Sg'x'g]% . 

 

9= g]kfn :^s PS;r]Gh lnld^]*nfO{ k"j{ hfgsf/L u/fP cg';f/ ldlt 2077÷01÷12 z]o/ bflvn vf/]h 

jGbsf] ldlt sfod ul/Psf] % . 

 

10= jflif{s k|ltj]bg, 2076 tyf ;fwf/)f;ef ;DjlGw hfgsf/L sDkgLsf] s]lGbo sfof{no, yfkfuf+pdf ;Dks{ 

ug{ jf www.hgi.com.np df x]g{ ;Sg'x'g] % . jflif{s k|ltj]bg, 2076 sf] Online Link ljB'lto dfWodjf^ 

z]o/wgL  dxfg'efjx?nfO{ k&fpg] Joj:yf ul/g]% . o;}nfO{ ;"rgf dflg tf]lsPsf] ;dodf g} ;efdf 

;fd]n eO{ ;xof]u ul/lbg'x'g ljgd| cg'/f]w ul/G% . 
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lxdfnog hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= 
%lJj;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;ef a:g] 

;"rgf 

 

ldlt 2077/03/01 ut] j;]sf] lxdfnog hg/n O{G:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] j}&s g+= 253     

sf] lg)f{ofg';f/ sDkgLsf] %lJj;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;ef lgDg lnlvt :yfg, ldlt / ;dodf lgDg ljifo pk/ 

%nkmn ug{ a:g] ePsf] % .  

 

ldlt M 2077 c;f/ 29 ut] ;f]daf/ . 

:yfg M sDkgLsf] s]lGb|o sfof{no, yfkfuf+p, sf&df)*f} . 

;do M ljxfg 11 ah] . 

 

%lJj;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efsf] nflu ljifo;"rL 

-s_ ;fdfGo k|:tfj 

-1_ %lJj;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf ;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf^ cWoIfsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg kfl/t ug]{ .  

-2_ n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt cfly{s jif{ 2075/076 sf] jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fj, gub k|jfx 

ljj/)f / O{So"^Ldf ePsf] kl/jt{g / tt\;DjlGw cg';"rLx? kfl/t ug]{ . 

-3_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/; jdf]lhd xfn sfod /x]sf] r'Qmf k"+hL ?=,102,72,00,000 sf] 3=75 

k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] gub nfef+; ?=3,85,20,000/- s/ k|of]hgsf] nflu ;d]t cg'df]bg ug]{ . 

-4_ cfly{s jif{ 2076/077 sf] nflu n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo'QmL / lghsf] kfl/>lds n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltn] 

l;kmfl/; u/]sf]nfO{ cg'df]bg ug]{ . ->L ;'Gb/ P)* sDkgL k'gM n]vfk/LIfs lgo'QmLsf] nflu of]Uo 

x'g'x'G% ._     

 -5_  ljljw . 

 

-v_ ljz]if k|:tfj 

-1_ ;+rfns ;ldltn] l;kmfl/; u/] jdf]lhd xfn sfod /x]sf] r'Qmf k"+hL ?=1,02,72,00,000 sf] 4   

-rf/_ k|ltztn] xg cfpg] ?=4,10,88,000/- j/fj/sf] jf]g; z]o/ hf/L ug]{ . To;/L jf]g; z]o/ 

hf/L ubf{ leGg c+sdf cfpg] z]o/nfO{ ;+:yfks z]o/ / ;j{;fwf/)f z]o/sf] cg'kft sfod} /flv 

glhssf] k'/f c+s sfod ug]{ . ;fy} jf]g; z]o/ hf/L ubf{ r'Qmf k"+hL j[WbL x'g] ePjf^ ;f]xL cg'?k 

k|jGwkq / lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg ug]{ . 

 

-2_ lgodfjnLsf] ;fljs Joj:yfdf ;+rfnsx?sf] ;'ljwf lgod 18 -%_ yk ug]{ . 

 

-3_ k|jGwkq / lgodfjnLsf] ;+zf]wgx?df lgodgsf/L lgsfox?jf^ s'g} km]/ jbn yk#^ ug{ lgb]{zg 

jf ;'emfj ePdf ;f]xL jdf]lhd ug{ ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ . 

 

-4_ ljljw . 

                                         ;lrj 

 ;+rfns ;ldlt 
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Message from Chairman 
 

With the glorious history of 26 years, we introduce ourselves as one of the oldest general insurance 

companies in Nepal. In spite of the increase in the number of non-life insurance companies, we are 

happy that we have been able to increase our profit by 67% from that of last year as per NFRS. Entry 

of new General Insurance Companies, new innovation and ideas from Beema Samiti has definitely 

broadened the industry and its reach. With the increase in the number of insurance companies, the 

size and transaction volume in the insurance business continues to grow and the access of insurance 

has reached to 18 percent of the population, as of mid-March of FY2018/19. This figure we firmly 

believe will continue to grow.  

  

With a gross written premium of Rs.1.46 billion (1arba 46 crore) for the year 2018/19, we recorded 

a 6% market share in the Non-Life Insurance sector.  

  

We have always believed that prompt and fair claim settlement is a key aspect of the service we 

provide and with the support from our long-term partners (Reinsurance companies), we have settled 

claims worth Nrs. 941 million (94 crore) in the financial year 2018/19. 
  

As we look into the future, we must also take the time to think, to look back and to revisit our values 

and also give importance to our people who are at the heart of the company and make us what we 

are. We also realize that Nepal is evolving and the insurance industry is also evolving which means 

that performance, efficiency, team work, innovation will be at the heart of everything we do and the 

same will be expected from our people.  
  

Our customers are also evolving with easy access to information, aided by the growing mobile data 

network. We continue to think of how we can serve our customers best and provide products and 

services that add value to people’s lives. As we look into the future, we see that technology and data 

will be at the heart of what we do and we will be market leaders and strive to bring innovation into 

this otherwise traditional industry.  
  

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the stakeholders for your support towards the 

company, and look forward to your continued patronage in the coming years. 

  

Thank You, 

  
 Mahendra Krishna Shrestha 

Chairman  
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CEO Prospective 
 

On the occasion of 26th Annual General Meeting, I wish to express my gratitude to all members of 

our Board, Shareholders, Insured, my colleagues, Beema Samiti and all the concerned authorities 

with whose  guidance, suggestion and inspiration, the company has continuously positioned itself as 

one of the most trustworthy companies in the Nepalese non-life insurance market.  We have been 

continuously providing efficient and fair claim settlement to all our clients in return for the trust in 

us. 

 

We recorded a Gross Premium of Nrs. 1.46 billion (1arba 46 crore) this year (2018/19) as 

compared to Nrs.1.19 billion (1 arba 19 crore) in the previous year. For the growth of the company 

in coming year, we are implementing various strategies that will lead company growth. We are 

developing a digital platform as an alternative distribution channel of insurance service as one of 

the key strategies to contribute to making insurance more accessible and affordable to the larger 

population in Nepal.  Coming year will be more focused on SME, Micro, Agriculture and Cattle 

Insurance through out Nepal. For this we are in process of developing a mobile app. Similarly, we 

are coming up with products and services that is best suitable for such sectors.   

 

We have expanded our reach and opened 1 branch office, 4 sub branch offices and 1 extension 

counter this year and will continue the expansion in the coming year. 

 

The achievement we have made till date is due to the team at HGI and we endeavor to make the 

team more efficient and stronger in coming days. Focusing on innovation and technology enabled 

insurance solution for our customers, we are working on deploying new web-based insurance 

software this year.  This software will enable us to work more efficiently and create robust database.    

 

Being a socially responsible company, we have been continuing CSR activities. Blood donation 

campaign and support to cancer patient are the successful initiatives. 

 

This year we shall commence construction of new corporate building. Trust this building will assist in 

enhancing company image further. 

 

Amidst the excitement about the long-term growth potential of the non-life insurance industry in 

Nepal, we continue to stay focused on creating long term values for all our stakeholders. 

 

Thank you.  
 

Sushil Bajracharya 
Chief Executive Officer 
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Annual Report presented by the Chairman, Mr. Mahendra Krishna 
Shrestha, on behalf of the Board of Directors at the 26th Annual 
General Meeting 
 
Respected Shareholders, 
 
We on behalf of the board of directors of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited, cordially welcome 
all the shareholders and invitees to the 26th Annual General Meeting of the company. 
 
We are pleased to share the annual report for the financial year 2075-76(Financial Year 2018-19) on behalf of 
board of directors of the company.  
 
Today’s presentation of the 26th Annual report of the company prepared pursuant to section 109 of the 
Companies Act, 2063 for the Financial Year 2075-76  includes the Auditor’s Report, Balance Sheet, Profit and 
Loss Account, Cash Flow Statement and annexures forming part of the Financial Statements, along with special 
purpose Financial Statements as per the directives of the Insurance Board, the company’s current financial 
year activities & future action plans  as well as the directors’ report. 
 
1. Financial Results: 

S.No Particulars FY 2075-76  FY 2074-75  increment 

1 No of Policies Issued 61,333 58,387 
5% 

2 Gross Premium Income 1,459,031,800    1,190,976,569  
23% 

3 Net Premium Income 279,217,218        328,820,059  -15% 

4 Reinsurance Commission income      142,039,030        103,054,074  38% 

5 Gross Claims paid 941,894,017    3,497,097,980  -73% 

6 Net Claims paid 175,172,668        167,905,644  4% 

7 Other Operating & admin expenses 201,056,060        147,774,519  36% 

8 Income from Investment 180,559,508        148,786,948  21% 

9 Net Profit (as per NFRS) 236,011,382        141,106,947  67% 

10 Investment 1,988,069,623    1,936,617,930 3% 

11 Net-worth (as per NFRS) 1,749,150,259 1,507,312,377 16% 

12 Net-worth Per Share 170 147 16% 

 
a. Premium income: 

  Positive growth in gross premium income is due to increase in top line sales but as these risks were 
largely reinsurance driven, same level of impact is not seen in our net premium income. Further, a 
slight decrease seen in our retail portfolio for the year. 

 
b. Re-insurance commission income:  

  Re-insurance income has largely stayed the same; the increment of 38% is due to deferral of 
commission income from 2074-75 amounting to Nrs. 47.3 million which has been booked as income 
during this period. 

 
c. Investment income: 

The Company has achieved an investment income of Nrs.180.5 million (18 crore 05 lakhs) in FY 2018-
19 as against Nrs. 148.7 million (14crore 87 lakhs) in FY 2017-2018. This represents an increase of 21%. 
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d. Operating & administrative expenses: 
The Company’s operating & administrative expenses has seen a 36% increase in FY 2018-19 compared 
to 2017-18. Increase in employee bonuses owing to an increase in the current year’s profit and 
strategic investments in building digital infrastructure have accounted for some of these changes. 

 

e. Net profit: 
During the FY 2018-19, net profit has increased by 67% to Nrs. 236.01 million (23 crore 60 lakhs) from 
Nrs. 141.10 million (14 crore 11 lakhs). This makes it out highest ever recorded profit as per NFRS. 

 

f. Net-worth: 
The Company’s Net worth per share in F/Y 2075-76 is 170.28 which was 146.74 in 2074-75. 

 

g. Solvency Margin: 
The solvency ratio is the measurement of company’s ability to meet its obligation and shot term and 
long-term liabilities. As per solvency margin directive issued by Beema Samiti, the solvency ratio of 
the company should be more than 1.5. Our solvency margin is 1.91 which well exceeds the prescribed 
minimum. 

  
2. Review of Previous Year’s Performance 2075-76 (Financial Year 2018-19): 

The company’s market share in Financial Year 2018-19 among general insurance players, was 6%. 
Company recorded a Gross Direct Premium of Nrs. 1.45 billion (1arba 45 crore) in FY 2018-19 as compared 
to Nrs.1.19 billion (1 arba 19 crore) in FY 2018.  

 
The major premium contributor for 2018 - 19 was from our miscellaneous portfolio which majorly 
comprises of GPA, HIP, Medical, Burglary, All Risk, Group hospital, Travel insurance, and International 
Travel. This portfolio contributed 32% to our annual income as compared to 27% in the previous year. 
32%, compared to 27% in the previous year. Specifically, Aviation, Engineering, Motor, and Fire portfolios 
contributed 21%, 18%, 17%, and 8% respectively in the FY 2018 - 2019. 

 
Gross Claim settlement during the year FY 2018 - 19 was Nrs.941 million (94 crore 18 lakh) as compared 
to Nrs.3.5 billion (3 arba 5 crore) for FY 2017 - 18. With the continued support from our reinsurance 
partners, we are be able to consistently settle claims promptly, which is at the core of our promise to our 
customers.  

 
The Company is operating at a loss ratio of 62.74% in FY 2018 as compared to 51.06 % in FY 2017. The loss 
ratio has been calculated based on net premium earned and net claim incurred.  

 
 Gross Premium Income: 

Line of Business   FY 2075-76 Weightage ▲(%) FY 2074-75 Weightage ▲(%) 

Fire      120,957,632 
8% -1% 

    122,482,519  10% -1% 

Marine       34,794,656   
2% 54% 

      22,627,130  2% 17% 

Motor  242,989,593 
17% -2% 

    248,108,766  21% 9% 

Engineering     257,366,542   
18% 9% 

    236,990,487  20% 407% 

Agricultural       27,838,279 
2% -27% 

      38,278,788  3% 43% 

Miscellaneous     464,030,362   
32% 43% 

    325,413,059  27% -54% 

Micro              412,928   
0% 695% 

             51,930  0% 286% 

Aviation     310,641,808 
21% 58% 

    197,023,890  17% 19% 

  1,459,031,800  100%  1,190,976,569 100%  
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 Gross Claim Settlement: 

Line of Business  FY 2074-75 Weightage (%) ▲(%) FY 2074-75 Weightage ▲(%) 

Fire  
 12,279,931  -92% 1% 

157,186,506 4.49 -17 

Marine 
 8,928,661  50% 1% 

5,969,479 0.17 -52 

Motor 
 111,152,713  15% 12% 

96,851,231 2.77 -5 

Engineering 
 3,019,699  -99% 0% 

426,857,831 12.21 67 

Agricultural 
 42,107,264  13% 4% 

37,204,441 1.06 37 

Miscellaneous 
 80,529,446  -97% 9% 

2,526,249,854 72.24 171 

Micro 
 436,330  0% 0% 

0 -    -    

Aviation 
 683,439,974  177% 73% 

246,778,637 7.06 32 

Total 941,894,018 100  3,497,097,979 100  
 

Re-insurance: 
The company’s treaties for the Financial Year 2018 - 19 were led by M/s GIC Re, India for proportional 
treaties and M/s XLCatlin under non- proportional category followed by rated re-insurers like Trust Re, 
New India Assurance, ZEP Re, Kenya Re, Asian Re etc. The Company is also reinsuring a reasonable share 
of its insurance policies with Nepal Re under direct cession.  In addition, we are supported by rated re-
insurer like IHI BUPA, Sirius International and Hanover Re for travel insurance. 

 
3. Impact of National and International Events on the Company’s Business: 
 

The business of insurance is thriving and insurers are gradually reaching out to many new parts of the 
country that previously remained out of the radar of the insurance sector. The growth of insurance 
business will only accelerate in the future. The entry of new insurance companies also shows rising 
investor confidence in the domestic insurance market. This is displayed by the fact that despite the 
mandatory hike in the paid-up capital of insurance companies, new players are eager enter the market 
while the existing companies are working to further strengthen their position.  

 
In tune with the new federal structure of the country, the company is planning to open provincial offices 
with in all the seven provinces. This will help in accelerating the business of the company.  
 
Special Note on the Impact of Covid-19: 
 
Covid-19, Pandemic hit Nepal with the first case on 23rd January. With the rise of 2nd case on 23rd May, 
our country went into Lockdown from 24th April. This lockdown has had a significant impact in our society, 
business and the wider economy as a whole. The insurance industry both life and non-life insurance have 
also been majorly impacted.  
 
On the positive side, this unprecedented situation has forced us to be able to quickly adapt, innovate and 
come together as a team. It also forced us to find ways to continue our operations, adapt to the working 
from home environments and find new avenues of reaching our customers. But on the other hand, the 
reality is also that our business has been hit hard. In addition to finding new business, renewal of policies 
has also been majorly affected due to this lockdown in the country with premium collection being the 
main challenge during this pandemic.   
 
With the recently implemented web-based software and through VPN network, we were quickly able to 
implement a work from home environment with minimal business interruption. Activities we had initiated 
even before lockdown like tying up with various e wallets like E-sewa and Khalti came in use at the right 
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time for us and we were able to implement these connections for premium payments seamlessly and 
ahead of many of our competitors.  
One great example of our recent innovations is the launch of COVID 19 insurance wherein till date we have 
also sold 3,693 Policies till Jestha end 2077. 

 
4. Achievements since the last fiscal year till preparation of the Annual Report and Future Plans: 

The comparative premium underwritten during the fiscal year 2075-76 are tabulated below: 

S.No Particulars FY 2076-77 (up to Jestha) FY 2075-76 

1 Gross Premium Income 1,151,547,794.59    1,458,852,739.57  

 
Future Plan: 
 As we look ahead into FY Financial Year 2077-78 / 2020 – 2021, the effects of COVID 19 will likely continue 
for most of the year and we have to continue to innovate to find new ways to effectively operate in this 
challenging environment as well as serve our customers promptly.  
 
We continue to march ahead with our Vision 2030 and endeavor to incorporate this aspect in all our future 
planning. 
 
a. Delighted Customer 
b. Data Driven Decision Making 
c. Accessible and Affordable Insurance to All 
d. Preferred Job Destination 
e. Be in Top 3 
 

5. Industrial and Business relations: 
 

The Company has set a target to motivate all of its employees to form a professional relationship with 
one- another which will have many benefits to the business and assist us as we move forward.  
 
To align with its vision of being a most preferred job destination in the industry, company is focusing to 
bringing in people who are talented, aligned with company’s values and focused on its goal. Company is 
also focusing on more trainings & seminars to its employees to support our teams in delivering their best 
work in service of our Vision 2030. 

 
6. Changes in the Board of Directors and Senior Management: 
 

The tenure of 3 directors representing promoter director and 2 directors representing public director 
expired in the fiscal year 2075-76.  
 
The Company through its 25th AGM re-elected the directors for next tenure. Mr. Mahendra Krishna 
Shrestha, Mr. Bikram Krishna Shrestha and Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha has been re-elected as Promoter 
director and Mrs. Nura Kumari Sharma and Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit has been re-elected as public director. 
Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha has been re-elected as a chairman of the newly re-elected board. 
 
Similarly, Mr. Sushil Bajracharya has been re-appointed for his second tenure from 1st Shrawan, 2076 as 
CEO. 
 

7. Major Factors affecting Business: 
a. New Entrants: 

There were 17 General Insurance Companies providing general insurance services in the industry. At 
the end of 2074-75, 3 more companies were given license, increasing the total figure to 20.  The rise 
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of new entrants has developed intense price competition in the industry, especially in the retail 
market. 

  
b. Dynamism in social and economic sector: 
 
The change in the federal structure has put more challenge for the insurance companies to increase its 
reach.  
 
The ups and downs in the financial sector also impact the insurance sector being an inseparable part of 
the economy. Despite ups and downs, insurance company can help create more liquidity and mobilize 
savings. As an institutional investor the insurance industry thus makes an invaluable contribution to the 
development and better working of the capital market. 
 
c. Revolution in Data: 
 
Insurance companies have always made use of substantial amount of data, but how they leverage data is 
changing in significant way.  
 
d. Digitalization: 
 
The convenience and efficiency of online and mobile channels, coupled with the commoditization of the 
core insurance product, has led insurance customers to seek a new experience. 
 
The digital insurance trend, then, is really about the way consumer will choose to interact with the 
insurance company, unlike current trends. Going forward, insurers need to focus far more on the 
consumer as an individual. In this environment, an effective omni-channel strategy will be key, as will an 
insurer’s capabilities around self- service.   

 
8. Dividend: 
 

We have generated higher profit as per NFRS as compared to GAAP. However, as per Beema Samiti’s 
circular, excess profit in NFRS has to be allocated to Regulatory reserve. Keeping this constraint in mind, 
we have proposed dividend of 3.5% amounting to Rs. 38,520,000 and bonus share @ 4% amounting to Rs. 
41,088,000 utilizing its share premium (Rs. 36,293,137).    

 
9. Appointment/ Re- appointment of Auditor: 
 

The Board expressed its sincere gratitude to M/S Sundar & co. for successfully conducting statutory audit 
for the fiscal year 2075-76. 
 
For the next fiscal year 2076-77, as per recommendation from the Audit Committee, company has 
proposed M/s Sundar & Co. as its Statutory and Tax auditor.  
 

 
10. Share Capital: 
 

The company’s paid-up share capital in the year under review is Rs.1.0272 arba. The company has 
maintained the paid-up share capital limit of Rs. 1 arba as per the directive issued by Beema Samiti.  

 
11. Provisions related to section 109 (4) Companies Act, 2063 (first amendments, 2074): 

a. Details of Forfeited Shares: 
Company has not forfeited any shares till the reporting date. 
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b. Disclosure of transaction with Subsidiary/ Associates: 
Company has no Subsidiary/ Associates till the reporting date. 

 
c. Information provided by the Principal Shareholders in the last fiscal year: 

No such information was provided during the reporting period. 
 
d. Disclosure on the share transaction & ownership by the Board Members and Employees of the 

Company in the last fiscal year: 
 None 
 
e. Disclosure of information on involvement of any Board Member or their Close Relatives having 

personal interest on any agreement done by the company during the last fiscal year: 
 

None 
 
f. Disclosure on Shares buy back of the company: 
 

None. 
 
g. Internal Control System, Risk Management system & its effectiveness: 
 

The internal control system of the company is designed in such a way to achieve following 
organizational objectives:  
 
a. operational effectiveness and efficiency,  
b. reliable financial reporting and  
c. compliance with laws, regulations and policies.  
 
At the organizational level, the company has formed Internal Audit Committee headed by public 
director Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit. The company has appointed an independent Chartered Accountant 
firm M/s G.P. Rajbahak & Co as Internal Auditor. The internal audit report issued by the internal 
auditor will be presented in the meeting of Audit Committee for its discussion. The comment from the 
consultant and Audit Committee has been implemented regularly. The company strongly believes 
that, the implementation of suggestion of internal audit report has strengthen the overall internal 
control system of the organization. Company has been following the Corporate Governance Directive, 
2075 issued by the Insurance Board. It has helped to make the internal control system more effective.  
 
The company believes that, it has followed the risk minimization approach through its effective 
internal control system. It has also formed a Risk Management Committee for effective management 
of risk. Further, the company has made its compliance officer more accountable for internal risk 
management. 

 
h. Disclosure on the total Management expenses on last fiscal year: 
 

The company has expensed Nrs. 145,770,887 (one hundred forty-five million, seven hundred seventy 
thousand, and eight hundred eighty-seven only) as total management expenses in the FY 2075-76. 
 
i. Details of members of Audit committee, their remuneration, allowances and facilities, action 

taken, and any recommendations made by the committee: 
 

In the review period, company has constituted 3 members audit committee under the 
chairmanship of Public Director Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit, Independent director Mr. Dasarath Lal 
Shrestha and promoter director Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha are the other two audit committee 
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members. The meeting fee for each audit committee meeting has been fixed at Nrs.7,000 (seven 
thousand). 

 
The actions made by the audit committee are as follows, 
1. Review of Statutory Audit Report and recommended management for the improvements, if 

required. 
2. Review of Internal Audit Report and recommend management for the improvements, if 

required.  
3. Recommend the appointment of Statutory Auditor to the AGM 
4. Review of Internal Control System of the company and provide suggestions for improvement.  

 
j. Disclosure on amount receivables from Directors, Managing Directors, CEO, Company’s Principal 

Shareholders or any firm, company or any other organization associated with such individuals 
or their close relatives: 

  None. 
 

k. Disclosures on Salary, Allowances and facilities provided to the Directors, Managing Directors, 
CEO and other employees: 

  

S.N. Particulars CEO Other (up to Assistant 
Manager) 

1. Salary 2,139,000 11,162,165 

2. Allowances 621,100 3,287,845 

3. Provident Fund 213,900 888,408 

4. Dashain Allowances 178,250 963,242 

5. Others Vehicle with Driver, Fuel, 
insurance, Telephone and 

bonus as per Act and as per 
the term of contract, 

payment of Rs 1,069,500 at 
the end of the contract 

term.  

Vehicle, Fuel, insurance, 
Telephone and bonus as 

per Act 

 
l. Remaining Dividend amount to be claimed by shareholders: 
 

None. 
 
m. Disclosure on purchase and sale of property as per clause 141: 
 

None. 
 
n. Disclosure on transaction between associated companies as per clause 175: 
 

None. 
 
o. Any other details to be disclosed in the report as per the companies act and existing laws: 
 

Company is having a market share of 6% (approx) in the general insurance industry. 
 
p. Disclosure on the provision of the directive 86 as per Companies Directives. 2072: 
 

The company has been abiding the provision made in the company’s directives 2072. 
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q. Other issues: 
 

Company has paid total direct and indirect taxes of Nrs. 293,768,481 to the Government of Nepal. 
The details of which are presented below: 

 

Income Tax Nrs. 83,620,934 

Tax Deducted at Source Nrs. 25,132,827 

Value Added Tax Nrs. 185,014,720 

12. Conclusion: 
 
We would like to express our sincere gratitude to Government of Nepal, Insurance Board, and Office of 
Company Registrar, Nepal Rastra Bank, Securities Board of Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Limited, CDS and 
Clearing Limited, Inland Revenue Department, NMB Capital ltd, Stock Broker, Commercial / Development Bank 
and Finance Companies, clients who have helped us directly and indirectly in the growth of companies.  
 
Also, we would like to express our gratitude to our agents, surveyors. The efforts shown by all the employees 
of the companies during the period is highly praiseworthy.  
   
We would like to thank all the shareholders and other attendees present in the AGM for your valuable 
presence and active participation. 
 
Thank You, 
 
 
Ajaya Ratna Sthapit,        Mahendra Krishna Shrestha 
Director        Chairman 
Date:   2077/03/04 
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lxdfnog hg/n O{G:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]*sf] 

 %lJj;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf ;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af^ 

 cWoIf >L dx]Gb| s[i)f >]i&Ho"n] k|:t't ug'{ x'g] 

cfly{s jif{ 2075/76 sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg 

 

>L cfb/)fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 

o; lxdfnog hg/n O{G:of]/]G; sDkgLsf] %lJj;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf COVID-19 sf] ljifd 

kl/l:yltdf klg pkl:yt ;a} z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx? tyf cfdlGqt ljleGg ;+:yfsf k|ltlgwL cltlyx?nfO{ 

o; sDkgL tyf d cfkm\gf] tkm{af^ :jfut Pa+ clejfbg ub{%' .  
 

z]o/#gL dxfg'efjx?, 
 

o; %lJj;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf Covid-19 dxfdf/Lsf] pRr hf]lvdnfO{ dWogh/ u/]/ sDkgLsf] 

cfly{s jif{ 2075.76 sf] lj:t[t jflif{s k|ltj]bg oxf¤x? ;dIf ljB'lto dfWodjf^ hfgsf/L  u/fO{ 

;s]sf] x'bf cf= j= 2075.76 sf] ;+lIFKt cfly{s ultljwL / cf= j= 2076.77 sf] k|utL ljj/)f 

k|sfz kfg{ rfxfG%' . z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?jf^ /fo ;'emfj ;ef ;dIf k|:t't ug'{ x'g] g} % / 

jflif{s k|ltj]bg cg'df]bg x'g]df xfdL ljZj:t %f} .  
 

>L jLdf ;ldltsf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ cfly{s jif{ 2074.75 b]lv g]kfn ljlQo k|ltj]bgdfg   -NFRS_ 

cg';f/ ljlQo ljj/)f tof/ ub}{ cfPsf %f} .  
 

klRr;f} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf z]o/wgLx?sf] ;'emfj cg';f/ sDkgLn] zfvf sfof{nox? lj:tf/ ub}{ 

Digital Platform sf] dfWodjf^ Retail Business cem j(fpg] ;f]rsf ;fy cuf*L j(]sf] s'/f z]o/wgL 

dxfg'efjx?nfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxfG%f} . 
  

cfly{s jif{ 2075.76 df s'n lk|ldod cfDbfgL ?=1,45,90,31,800.- cfh{g ePsf] % . ut jif{ s'n 

lk|ldod ?= 1,19,09,76,569.- cfh{g ePsf] lyof] . ;fy} cfly{s jif{ 2076.77 sf] h]i& d;fGt 

;Dddf s"n lk|ldod ;+sng ?=1,15,15,47,795.- ePsf] ;d]t o;} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf hfgsf/L 

u/fpg rfxfG%f} .  
  

g]kfn ljlQodfg k|ltj]bg cg';f/ cfly{s jif{ 2075.76 df ;+rfng gfkmf dWo] cfos/ vr{ 

?=10,22,36,109.- s^fp¤bf ?=23,60,11,382.-  v'b gfkmf cfh{g ePsf] % . ut jif{ cfos/ kl%sf] 

v'b gfkmf ?=14,11,06,947.- lyof] . cf= j=2074.75 sf] t'ngfdf ;ldIff jif{df ?=9,49,04,435.- 

n] v'b gfkmfdf j[¢L ePsf] % . g]kfn ljlQo k|ltj]bgdfg -NFRS_ cg';f/ ljlQo ljj/)f jgfpbf 

ljleGg lgodgsf/L sf]ifx?sf] ;d]t Joj:yf ug{ kg]{ ePsfn] o; jif{sf] gfkmfjf^ z]o/wgLx?nfO{ 

r'Qmf k"hLsf] 4 k|ltzt jf]g; z]o/ / 3=75 k|ltzt dfq nfef+;sf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] hfgsf/L 

u/fpg rfxfG%' .  
 

;fy} aLdf ;ldltsf] lgb{]zg jdf]lhd ut cfly{s jif{ b]lv g]kfn ljlQo k|ltj]bgdfg -NFRS_ cg';f/ 

tof/ kfl/Psf] ljlQo ljj/)f k|:t't ug{ kg]{ Joj:yf ePsfn] ;f]xL  cg';f/ tof/ kfl/Psf] lj:t[t 

k|ltj]bg c+u|]hL efiffdf o;} k'l:tsfdf k|:t't ul/Psf] % . 
 

wGoafb 

 dx]Gb| s[i)f >]i& 

 cWoIf 

     ldlt 2077.03.04 
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lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL 2073 sf] lgod 22 sf] pklgod -1_ 

;+u ;DjlGwt lxdfnog hg/n O{G:of]/]G; s+= ln= cf= j= 2075/076 sf] 

jflif{s k|ltj]bg 
 

1= ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgM 26 cf} jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efsf] k|ltj]bg ;+nUg % . 

 

2= n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bgM sDkgLsf] cf= j= 2075/076 sf] n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;+nUg % . 

 

3= n]vfk/LIf)f ePsf] ljlQo ljj/)fM >L jLdf ;ldltjf^ l:js[t ePsf] o; sDkgLsf] cf= j= 

 2075/076 sf] n]vfk/LIf)f ;DkGg ljlQo ljj/)f ;+nUg k]z u/]sf %f} . 

 

4= sfg'gL sf/jfxL ;DjGwL ljj/)fM 

 -s_ o; cjwLdf sDkgLn] jf sDkgLsf] lj?Wb s'g} d'@f bfo/ gePsf] . 

 -v_ sDkgLsf] ;+:yfks jf ;+rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;+rfns lj?Wb k|rlnt   

    lgodsf] cj!f jf kmf}Hbf/L ck/fw u/]sf] ;DjGwdf s'g} d'@f bfo/ gePsf] . 

 -u_ s'g} ;+rfns jf ;+rfns lj?Wb cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DjGwdf s'g}  

    d'@f bfo/ gePsf] . 

 

5= sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/ tyf k|utLsf] ljZn]if)fM 

 -s_ ut cfly{s jif{df lwtf]kq jhf/df sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/ ;fdfGo ?kdf ePsf] b]lvG% . 

lwtf]kq jhf/df ePsf] ptf/ r(fjsf] cj:yf cg';f/ o; sDkgLsf] z]o/sf] d"Nodf klg 

k|efj  k/]sf] Joj:yfkgsf] ljZn]if)f % . 

 -v_ ut jif{sf] k|To]s q}dfl;s cjwLdf o; sDkgLsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go"gtd / cGtLd 

 d"Nosf ;fy} s"n sf/f]jf/ ;+Vof / s"n sf/f]jf/ lbg  lgDgfg';f/ % . 

    

cjwL clwstd d"No ?= Go"gtd d"No 

?= 

clGtd 

d"No ?= 

sf/f]jf/ 

z]o/ ;+Vof 

sf/f]jf/ 

lbg 

k|yd q}dfl;s 415.00 410.00 411.00 185984 62 

bf]>f] q}dfl;s 440.00 348.00 397.00 242183 60 

t]>f] q}dfl;s 412.00 370.00 385.00 242183 59 

rf}yf] q}dfl;s 430.00 348.00 350.00 250311 64 

 

6= ;d:of / r'gf}tLM         

  -s_ j(\bf] d'b|fl:kmltsf sf/)f ;+rfng vr{df j[WbL . 

  -v_ c:j:y k|lt:kwf{ . 

  -u_ jLdf ;DjGwL hgr]tgfsf] sld . 

7= ;+:yfut ;'zf;gM  

  ;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfod /fVg sDkgL ;b}j k|ltj$ /x]sf] % . ;fy} ;+:yfut  

  ;'zf;g sfod /fVg sDkgLn] b]xfo jdf]lhd sbd ;d]t cjnDjg u/]sf] % . 

  -s_ ;+rfns ;ldlt, aLdf P]g, aLdf lgodfjnL tyf ljBdfg sfg"g / cGo 

   lgodgsf/Lsf] lgod tyf lgb{]zgsf] k")f{ kfngf ul/ ;+:yfut ;''zf;gnfO{ lg/Gt/ kfngfsf] 

 nflu ;+rfns ;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg sl^j$ % .  

      -v_ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL Jojl:yt % ;fy} cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf)f ug]{ Joj:yf hf/L % .  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended on Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) 

 
1. Company overview 
 
Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is a public limited 
liability company incorporated as per the laws of Nepal. The Company obtained the license (License number 
04/050) from Beema Samiti on Srawan 6, 2050 and finally got approval from Beema Samiti to carry on business 
from Srawan 13, 2050. The Company started its commercial operation from Mangsir 16, 2050. 
 
The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is located at HGI House, Babar Mahal, 
Kathmandu, Nepal. 
 
The Company is engaged in the business of underwriting non-life insurance. There were no significant changes 
in the nature of principal activities in the company during the financial year. 
The Company does not have any holding company and neither have any interest in subsidiary and associate 
companies 
 
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements 
2.1 Statement of compliance 
 
These financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, 
statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and notes 
thereto have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with requirements applicable Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standards (NFRS) and the relevant presentation requirements thereof as laid down by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and comply with requirements of Company Act, 2063 of Nepal and 
applicable directives issued by Insurance Board of Nepal. The Company adopted NFRS from Srawan 1, 2074 
(July 16, 2017).  
 
2.2 Basis of measurement 
 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain 
items as follows: 
a. Investment in equity instruments and units of mutual fund are measured at fair value. 
b. Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognised at present value of the defined benefit obligation as 

determined by actuary. 
c. Insurance contract liabilities are actuarial determined values, and these have been measured at higher of 

such actuarial determined values under liability adequacy test and regulatory requirements as per the 
circular dated Ashwin 12, 2075 (September 28, 2018) of the Insurance Board of Nepal. 

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in the order of liquidity. 
Earlier financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors on Poush 15, 2076 
(December 31, 2019) without considering the adjustment of prior period loss in retained earnings amounting 
to (Rs. 59,395 thousands), the company has transferred current years’ excess profit as per NFRS over GAAP, 
(amounting to Rs. 34,805 thousands) to regulatory reserve, as per directions given by the Insurance Board on 
Magh 8, 2076 (January 22, 2020). The revised financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s 
board of directors on Magh 21, 2076 (February 4, 2020).  
 
2.3 Functional and presentation currency 
 
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the Company. Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupee. 
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2.4 Materiality and aggregation 
 
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar 
nature or function are presented separately unless that are material. 
 
2.5 Going concern 
 
The board of directors have made assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as going concern and are 
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the 
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s 
ability to continue as going concern and accordingly, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the 
basis of going concern. 
 
2.6 New standard issued but not yet effective 
 
There have been amendments to the standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and 
applicability of the new standards have been notified for International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
These amendments and new standards become applicable only when these are pronounced by ICAN. 
 
a. IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments 
IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 – Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement and is 
effective from period beginning from January 1, 2018.  
 
IFRS 9 replaces the existing ‘incurred loss’ impairment approach with an expected credit loss approach, 
resulting in earlier recognition of credit losses. IFRS 9 impairment model has three stages. Entities are required 
to recognize a 12-month expected loss allowance on initial recognition (stage 1) and a lifetime expected loss 
allowance when there has been a significant increase in credit risk (stage 2). The assessment of whether a 
significant increase in credit risk has occurred is a key aspect of the IFRS 9 methodology and involves 
quantitative measures, such as forward looking probabilities of default, and qualitative factors and therefore 
requires considerable management judgment. Stage 3 requires objective evidence of impairment, which is 
similar to the guidance on incurred losses in IAS 39. IFRS 9 requires the use of more forward looking 
information including reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions. The need to 
consider multiple economic scenarios and how they could impact the loss allowance is a very subjective 
feature of IFRS 9 impairment model. 
 
NFRS 9 – Financial Instruments currently pronounced by ICAN only prescribes recognition and measurement 
of financial instruments and does not prescribe impairment of financial instruments. According, in these 
financial statements, financial instruments, viz. financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments are 
recognised and measured as per NFRS 9. Whereas, impairment on financial assets are recognised on the basis 
of incurred loss as per NAS 39. 
 
b. IFRS 16 – Leases 
On January 13, 2016 IASB issued IFRS 16 to replace IAS 17 – Leases. The new standard sets out the principles 
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. All leases result in the lessee 
obtaining the right to use an asset at the start of the lease and, lease payments are made over time, also 
obtaining financing. Accordingly, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or 
finance leases as is required by IAS 17 and instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model. Lessees will 
be required to recognize: (a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the 
underlying asset is of low value; and (b) depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities 
in the income statement. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. 
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for 
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those two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2019. 
 
c. IFRS 17 – Insurance Contract 
In May 2017, IASB issued IFRS 17 and will replace IFRS 4 – Insurance Contract. Under the IFRS 17 model, 
insurance contract liabilities will be calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with a 
provision for risk. The discount rate will reflect current interest rates. IFRS 17 requires an entity to recognise 
profit as it delivers insurance services, rather than when it received premium and to provide information about 
insurance contract profit that an entity expects to recognise in the future period. 
 
3. Use of estimates and judgements 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 
that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. 
 
The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

Critical accounting estimates / judgements Disclosure note 

Unexpired risk reserve (URR) Note 4.9(c) 

Provision for gross outstanding claims (OCR) Note 4.9(a) 

Provision for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) Note 4.9(b) 

Employee benefits Note 4.15(c) and (d) 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment  Note 4.1(d) 

Useful lives of intangible assets Note 4.2(c) 

3.1 Insurance contract liabilities 
For insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at 
the date of statement of financial position and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred, but not yet 
reported (IBNR). It can take significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with 
certainty. The main assumption underlying estimating the amounts of outstanding claims is the past claims 
development experience. 
 
3.2 Defined benefit obligation 
 
The defined benefit obligation liability of the Company is based on the actuarial valuations carried out by an 
independent actuary. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected 
rates of return on assets, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, 
the underlying assumptions and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is very sensitive to changes 
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 
4. Significant accounting policies 
 
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
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4.1 Property, plant and equipment 
 
a. Recognition of property, plant and equipment 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as assets if and only if: 
▪ It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow the Company; and 
▪ The cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 
b. Initial recognition 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, and impairment loss, if any. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment. 
 
c. Subsequent recognition 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a 
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of 
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 
 
The cost of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use till the date of statement 
of financial position, are disclosed under capital work-in-progress. 
 
d. Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual value 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over their useful lives. The estimated useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment is as follows: 

Class of property, plant and equipment Useful life 

Building 60 years 

Leasehold property 5 years 

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 

Computers 5 years 

Office equipment 5 years 

Other assets 10 years 

Vehicles 10 years 

 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
Residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
if appropriate. 
 
e. Impairment of property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount 
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets 
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. 
 
f. Disposals and derecognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
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an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
 
4.2 Intangible assets 
 
a. Initial recognition 
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible asset acquired 
separately are measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an 
item of intangible assets. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
 
b. Subsequent recognition 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred. 
 
c. Useful economic lives, amortisation and impairment 
The useful economic life of an intangible asset is considered finite where the right to such asset is limited to a 
specified period of time by contract or by the likelihood of technological obsolescence. Intangible assets with 
finite lives are amortised using the straight-line method to write down the cost over its estimated useful 
economic lives and is recognised in statement of profit or loss. 

Class of intangible assets Useful life 

Capitalised software 5 years 

 
An impairment review is performed whenever there is an indication of impairment. When the recoverable 
amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
The amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
if appropriate. 
 
d. Derecognition 
Intangible assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset, is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the 
year the asset is derecognised. 
 
4.3 Deferred Tax assets and liabilities 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax 
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

i. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in 
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 
 
ii. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled 
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses, 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilized except where the deferred tax asset 
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relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 
 
Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income 
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized outside 
statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current 
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 
the same taxation authority. 
 
4.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the relevant instrument and are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from 
the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities. 
a. Classification 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
▪ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through 

profit or loss), and 
▪ those measured at amortised cost. 
The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows. 
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of profit or loss or other 
comprehensive income. 
 
The Company reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets 
changes. 
b. Financial assets 
Financial assets include loans, advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Such assets are 
initially recognised at transaction price when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The 
transaction price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being measured at fair value through statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 
i. Subsequent measurement 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both (a) the entity’s business model for managing the 
financial assets and (b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 
Financial assets are classified as those: 
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▪ Measured at amortised cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it is held solely for collection of cash flows arising from 
payments of principal and interest. 
Fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions, advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents are classified for measurement at amortised cost. 
 
▪ Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI, if it is held with an objective to collect contractual cash flows and selling 
such financial asset and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal outstanding. It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value movements recognised in the 
other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue 
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is 
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss and recognised in other gains or losses. Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
investment income using the effective interest method. 
 
However, in respect of particular investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair 
value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at initial recognition may be made to present subsequent 
changes in fair value through other comprehensive income. 
 
▪ Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) 
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or 
loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in investment income. 
 
ii. Impairment of financial assets 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) held at 
amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are 
impaired based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Loss allowances is 
recognised for all financial assets which are considered as doubtful of recovery. Losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in statement of profit or loss. 
 
iii. Derecognition of financial assets 
Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has been 
transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial 
assets are also derecognised upon write off. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of financial asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and its carrying amount and is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
c. Financial liabilities 
Insurance payables, sundry creditors and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the 
respective contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or 
premium on redemption / settlement is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as finance cost over the 
life of the liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability figure disclosed in the 
statement of financial position. 
 
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation 
is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
 

d. ffsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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4.5 Reinsurance assets 
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business to recognise reinsurers through formal 
reinsurance arrangements. Reinsurance assets include balance due from reinsurer for unexpired premium 
reserve and for outstanding claim reserve. Amount recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner 
consistent with the ratio of unexpired premium reserve to gross premiums that have been ceded and with the 
ratio of outstanding claim reserve recoverable from reinsurers in accordance with the related reinsurance 
contract. 
 
Reinsurance assets is measured in gross in the statement of financial position unless a right to offset exits. 
Where the right to offset exits, these are measured at net basis. 
 
Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an 
indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs, when there is objective 
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of reinsurance asset that the Company 
may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably 
measurable impact on the amount that the Company will receive from the reinsurers. 
 
The impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
Reinsurance assets are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the 
contract is transferred to another party. 
 

4.6 Other assets 
 

Deferred fees and commission expenses 
Fees and commission expenses incurred during the financial year arising from writing or renewing of insurance 
contracts are deferred and amortised over the period in which the related revenues are earned. All other costs 
are recognised as expenses when incurred. 
 
4.7 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities 
 

Current tax assets of the company include the amount of advance income tax paid to the Inland Revenue 
Department and tax deducted at source. Similarly, current tax liabilities include the tax provision made for the 
year. 
 

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue 
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 
on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 
 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are shown in net in statement of financial position of the company 
as there exist condition to set off both of the assets and liabilities. 
 

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and financial institutions in current and 
short term deposits that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 

4.9 Insurance contract liabilities 
Insurance contract liabilities include outstanding claim reserve (OCR) including liability recognised for incurred 
but not reported (IBNR) claims and provision for unearned risk premiums (UPR). Insurance contract liabilities 
are derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled. 
 
a. Outstanding claim reserve (OCR) 
Outstanding claim reserve is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claim incurred but not settled at the 
reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related claim handling cost and reduction for the 
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expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays are experienced in notification and settlement of 
certain types of claims, therefore, the ultimate actual cost of the claims cannot be ascertained with certainty 
as at the date of statement of financial position. 
 
As required by NFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT) with respect 
of OCR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability for OCR is recognised 
at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under regulatory requirements.  
 
b. Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims 
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims are actuarially computed as required by NFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts. 
Liability of IBNR is recognised at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under 
regulatory requirements at 15% of net outstanding claims. 
 
c. Unearned risk reserve (URR) 
Unearned risk reserve includes a provision for unearned premium and any additional provision for premium 
deficiency. Unearned risk premiums represent premiums received for risks that have not yet expired and is 
generally released over the term of the insurance contract and is recognised as earned premiums. 
 
As required by NFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT) with respect 
of URR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability for URR is recognised 
at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under regulatory requirements at 50% 
of net premium received. 
 
4.10 Financial liabilities 
Insurance payables 
Insurance payables represent amount payable to agents, local insurance businesses and reinsurance company 
for premiums and commission which are unpaid. These amounts are recognised initially at their fair value of 
the consideration to be paid. Insurance payables are derecognised when the contractual obligation expires, is 
discharged or is cancelled. 
 
4.11 Other liabilities 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount 
can be reliably estimated. The carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each date of statement of 
financial position and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. 
 
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may probably not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be 
ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood 
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 
4.12 Revenue recognition 
a. Gross premiums 
Gross premiums comprise the total premium received or receivable for the whole period of cover provided by 
insurance contract entered into during the financial year. Gross premium is generally recognised upon 
inception of the insurance contract policy. Upon inception of the contract, premiums are recorded as and are 
earned primarily on a pro-rate basis over the term of the coverage of related insurance contract. 
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Unexpired risk reserve are those proportions of premiums written in a financial year that relate to periods of 
risks after the reporting date. Unexpired premiums are calculated on 365 days basis for all insurance contracts 
having an insurance coverage period of one year. However, in the case of marine cargo policies, having an 
insurance coverage period of less than one year, unearned premiums are calculated on 365 days basis of the 
insurance contract and where the insurance coverage is for a period of more than one year or in the absence 
of data required, unearned premiums are calculated at 50% of the gross premiums. 
The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as provision for unexpired risk reserve which is 
included under liabilities. 
 

b. Premiums ceded to reinsurers 
Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognised as an expense on the earlier of the date 
when the premiums are payable or when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are based on 
the rates agreed with reinsurers. 
 

c. Fees and commission income 
Fees and commission income earned during the financial year arising on premium ceded to reinsurers are 
recognised when the related service is performed in accordance with the insurance contract. The portion of 
fees and commission income for which the insurance contact is not expired is deferred and amortised over 
the period in with the related revenues are earned. 
 

d. Investment income 
i. Interest income 

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. 
ii. Dividend income 
 

Dividend income from investments in equity instruments and from investment in units of mutual funds is 
recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. 
 

e. Foreign currency transactions 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the date 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange 
rates are recognised in statement of profit or loss. 
 

4.13 Benefits and claims 
a. Gross benefits and claims 
Claims include all claims occurring during the financial year, whether reported or not together with claims 
handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value 
of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Claims 
outstanding are assessed by review of individual claim files and estimating changes in the ultimate cost of 
settling claims. 
 
The provision in respect of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is actuarially determined based on the past 
experience and trends. The provisions for claims are fairly stated on the basis of the information currently 
available, the ultimate liability will vary as a result of subsequent information and events which may result in 
adjustments to the amount reported. Such amounts are recorded and reflected in such subsequent periods. 
 
b. Claims recovered from reinsurers 
Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised 
according to the terms of the relevant insurance contract. 
4.14 Leases 
Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
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Company as lessee 
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the relevant lease.  
 
4.15 Employee benefits 
a. Short-term obligations 
Expenses in respect of short-term benefits are recognised on the basis of amount paid or payable during which 
services are rendered by the employees. Liabilities for salary and allowances that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the financial year in which the employees render the related services 
are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
 
b. Defined contribution plan 
These are plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to publicly administered funds as per local 
regulations and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of 
contributions to the social security fund with the government on account of provident fund. The Company’s 
payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due. 
 
c. Other long-term employee benefit obligations 
The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value 
of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. This benefit 
is unfunded. 
 
d. Post-employment obligation 
The Company’s defined benefit plans comprise of gratuity. The liability or asset recognised in the statement 
of financial position in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 
 
Service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected in the statement of profit or loss. Remeasurement 
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in 
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in OCI reserve as 
actuarial reserve in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of financial position. Gratuity is 
funded and deposited with Citizens Investment Trust, towards meeting the gratuity obligation. 
 

4.16 Income tax 
 
Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax.  Current tax in the statement of profit or loss is provided 
as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates and tax laws applicable 
during the period, together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income 
tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting 
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that the future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right 
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are disclosed 
separately under statement of other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 
 
4.17 Dividend distribution 
 
Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the board of 
directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders. 
 
4.18 Operating Segment 
 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the management team of the Company 
comprising of the chief executive officer and various department heads. 
The Company has identified the following line of insurance business as separate segment 
▪ Fire 
▪ Marine 
▪ Motor 
▪ Engineering 
▪ Aviation 
▪ Miscellaneous 
▪ Agriculture and 
▪ Micro 
 
Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as which exhibit 
similarities in nature of products and services offered, the type and class of customer and distribution 
methods.  
 
Segments includes total profit distribution of the Company to all its line of businesses. The premium income, 
reinsurance premium expenses, gross claims and claims recovered from reinsurers, outstanding claims, other 
direct expenses and income, fees and commission income, other operating and administrative expenses are 
allocated to each line of business as per the existing GAAP. 
“Unallocated Corporate Expenses” include revenue and expenses that relate to initiatives / costs attributable 
to the enterprise as a whole and are not attributable to segments. 
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31. Dividend 
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019), the board of directors of the Company have 
recommended and proposed a final dividend of Rs. 3.75 per share amounting to Rs. 38,520,000. Further, 
the board of directors have also recommended and proposed issue of bonus share of Rs. 4 per share 
amounting to Rs. 41,088,000. The change in dividend (cash from Rs. 56,496,000 to Rs. 38,520,000 and 
bonus from Rs. 51,360,000 to Rs. 41,088,000) is due to transfer to regulatory reserve from retained 
earning as per directions given by Insurance Board on Magh 08, 2076. 
 
32. Staff bonus 
 
Staff bonus has been calculated at lower of profit before bonus and tax as per GAAP and profit before 
bonus and tax as per NFRS. For the year ended Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019), profit before bonus and 
tax as per GAAP (Rs. 320,717,620) is lower than profit before bonus and tax as per NFRS (Rs. 370,319,253). 
Accordingly, bonus of Rs. 32,071,762 as per GAAP has been provided as staff bonus. 
 
33. Risk management framework 
33.1 Governance Framework 
 
The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to ensure that it will 
be above to continue as a going concern so that is can continue to provide returns to the shareholders 
through sustainable achievement of financial performance objective. Key management recognises the 
critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place. 
The board of directors and senior management manages the risks through various committees and 
delegated authorities. As part of the important activity within the Company, the risks are reviewed on 
regular basis and strategies are timely adopted to manage these risks. The risks are identified with clear 
understanding of market environment, regulatory environment and economic changes. 
 
33.2 Capital management 
 
The Company manages its capital with the following management objectives and approaches: 
▪ To maintain the minimum paid up capital as required by its regulator, Insurance Board of Nepal. 
▪ To maintain required level of stability for providing a degree of security to the policyholders. 
▪ To allocate capital efficiently that supports the development of the Company’s business so that it can 

continue to provide returns to the shareholders. 
▪ To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the 

policyholders, regulators and stakeholders. 
Operation of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements of the Insurance Board of Nepal. 
The Insurance Board has prescribed minimum paid up capital, solvency margin and investment policy to 
minimise risk of insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities that may 
arise. 
The Company maintains the minimum paid up capital of Rs. 1,000,000,000 as per the regulation 
prescribed by the Insurance Board. It also maintains solvency and investment as per the regulations 
prescribed. It maintains a solvency ratio of as per the regulatory requirement. 
 
33.3 Insurance risks 
 
The principal risk the Company is subjected under insurance contract is that actual claims and benefits 
payments or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of the 
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claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. The 
objective of the Company, is therefore, to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these 
liabilities. 
The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across portfolio of insurance contracts. The risk is also 
mitigated by careful selection and implementation of underwriting guidelines as well as use of reinsurance 
arrangements. 
The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components: 
▪ Product design risk 
▪ Underwriting risk 
▪ Reinsurance risk 
▪ Claim risk 
e. Product design risk 
The Company issues general insurance contracts such as fire, marine, motor, engineering, aviation, 
miscellaneous, agriculture, micro. The significant risks arising under general insurance portfolio are from 
changes in the climate leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of peoples due the change in their 
life styles and steady escalation of costs in respect of motor industry. 
The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and 
geographical areas. Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting 
strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in the term of type of risk.  
 
The Company’s insurance risk based on the line of business concentration is as follows: 

Line of business For the year ended 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

For the year ended 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

 Gross written 
premium 

Concentration 
Percentage 

Gross written 
premium 

Concentration 
Percentage 

Fire  120,957,632  8% 122,482,519 10% 

Marine  34,794,656  2% 22,627,130 2% 

Motor  242,989,592  17% 248,108,766 21% 

Engineering  257,366,542  18% 236,990,487 20% 

Aviation  310,641,808  21% 197,023,890 17% 

Miscellaneous  464,030,362  32% 325,413,059 27% 

Agricultural  27,838,280  2% 38,278,788 3% 

Micro 412,928 0% 51,930 0% 

Total 1,459,031,800  1,190,976,569  

f. Underwriting risk 
Underwriting involves measuring risk exposure and determining the premium that needs to be charged 
to undertake the insurance risk. Underwriting risk generally arise either from an inaccurate assessment of 
the risks entailed in writing and insurance policy or from factors wholly out of the underwriter’s control. 
The majority of underwriting risk to which the Company is exposed is of a short-term nature, and generally 
does not exceed 12 months. The company’s underwriting strategy aims to ensure that the underwritten 
risks are well diversified in terms of the type, amount of risk, and geography in order to ensure that the 
Company minimises the volatility of its insurance result. 
The above risk exposure is mitigated by improving the knowledge and skills of the underwriting staffs. 
Further, statistical database is maintained to enable proper decisions are taken during underwriting of 
insurance risks undertaken. Also, financial authority limits are in place for underwriting, clearly prescribing 
the limits to underwrite based on the sum insured and risk undertaken. 
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g. Reinsurance risk 
Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the Company to obtain insurance from reinsurers at the right 
time and at the appropriate cost. 
The above risk exposure is mitigated by choosing globally highly trusted reinsurance companies for 
reinsurance placements. The company has reinsurance treaty with the following reinsurance companies: 

Name of reinsurers Rating Issuing agency 

General Insurance Corporation of India, India A - AM Best 

Trust International Insurance and Reinsurance Company, 
Bahrain 

A - AM Best 

Zep Re (PTA Reinsurance Company) Nairobi, Kenya B ++ AM Best 

Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya BBB AM Best 

East Africa Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya BB++ AM Best 

XL Catlin A AM Best 

Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan., Bhutan B+ AM Best 

Bupa, UK AAA S&P 

Sirius International, Bermuda A AM Best 

Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd., Nepal Not available Not availables 

h. Claim risk 
Claim risk refers to risk that the actual claims or the timing thereof may differ from expectation and 
sufficient reserves may not be available to cover these liabilities. 
The above risk exposure is mitigated by implementing strict claim review policies to assess all new and 
ongoing claims. Regular detailed review of claims handling procedure and frequent investigation of 
possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company 
further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims in order to reduce its 
exposure to unpredictable future developments that may negatively impact the business. 
The Company seeks to reduce its claim risk through the use of experience actuaries who estimates 
actuarial indication of the required reserves to be made based on claims experience, business volume, 
anticipated change in the claims environment and claims cost. 
 
33.4 Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is counter-party default risk and includes the risk of failure of financial institutions with which 
the Company have placed deposits / investment to meet its contractual obligations, and the failure of 
reinsurers to meet claims when they fall due. It also includes risk of default by policyholders on premium 
receivables. 
The Company’s placement in debt instrument are primarily in fixed deposit with commercial banks, 
development banks and other financial institutions that are held at amortised cost of Rs. 1,753,090,440            
(2074-75: Rs. 1,765,671,871) which are managed and monitored by the investment committee of the 
Company. The Company carries other financial assets, such as balances with banks, advance to employees 
and other receivables. Bank deposits in fixed and other short-term deposit accounts are held with 
commercial banks, development banks and other financial institutions having a strong financial position 
and taking into account the experience of the Company over time, the counter party risk attached to such 
assets is considered insignificant. 
Advance to employees and other receivables are monitored on regular basis and is recovered on timely 
basis. Allowance for impairment is made for loss incurred assets if any. 
Credit risk to external reinsurers appears when insurance exposures are transferred by the Company to 
external reinsurance companies to mitigate insurance risks. Potential losses can arise due to non-
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recoverability of reinsurance receivables that are under reinsurance treaties in force. The Company has 
selected its reinsurers with high credit rating and reviews their rating periodically. The information of the 
reinsurers is provided in 32.3 (c) above. The Company’s exposure to reinsurance risk are placed with highly 
rated reinsurers and taking into account the experience of the Company over time, the counter party risk 
attached to insurance receivables is minimal except for receivable of Rs. 162,554,916 (2074-75: Rs. 
162,554,916) due from Aviation Assets Management Ltd, which has since been discontinued which has 
not been recovered. The company also has receivable of Rs. 625,904 recoverable from local insurance 
company under facultative arrangement which has not been recovered. Allowance for impairment for 
these amounts have been made in the financial statements.  
The Company does not have a policy of providing credit facility against issued policy document as per 
regulatory restrictions. However, in respect of agriculture insurance, 25% of the premium amount is 
recovered at the time of issue of the policy and balance 75% is guaranteed by the Government of Nepal 
as subsidy to the farmers which it paid to the Company through the Insurance Board of Nepal. Accordingly, 
the counter party risk attached to the amount due from policyholders is minimal. 
 
33.5 Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial instruments as they fall due.  
The Company maintains investment in accordance with the investment policy issued by the Insurance 
Board of Nepal. The Company has also invested in highly marketable securities that can be liquidated in 
the event of unforeseen contingencies. Further, the investment committee reviews the liquidity level of 
investments and takes appropriate actions to improve the liquidity position. 
Insurance receivables includes amount receivables from local insurance businesses under local facultative 
arrangement and from reinsurers under reinsurance arrangement for paid losses. These are recognised 
and measured at fair value of the considerations to be received. 
Insurance receivables also includes sundry debtors which are recognised when due and are initially 
measured at fair value on the consideration receivable. This receivable represents agriculture insurance 
policy which are subsidized by the government of Nepal to the extent of 75% of the premium invoiced 
amount. Collectability of premiums is reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
The following table represents the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities 
As at Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) 

Amount in Rs. 

Particulars Notes 0-3 Months 3-12 Months 1-2 Years Over 2 Years No Stated 
Maturity 

Total 

Financial assets        

Financial assets measured 
at amortised cost 

7 133,590,440 973,500,000 516,000,000 130,000,000 -    1,753,090,440 

Financial assets measured 
at FVOCI 

8 - - - - 234,979,183 234,979,183 

Other financial assets 9 1,140,945 - - - - 1,140,946 

Insurance receivables 9 - 198,182,578 - - - 198,182,578 

Cash and cash equivalent 14 325,766,780 - - - - 325,766,780 

Total financial assets  460,498,165 1,171,682,578 516,000,000 130,000,000 234,979,183 2,513,159,926 

Financial liabilities        

Insurance payables 18 - 479,078,011 - - - 479,078,011 

Other financial liabilities 18 - 10,524,715 - - - 10,524,715 

Total financial liabilities  - 489,602,726 - - - 489,602,726 

Excess liquidity  460,498,165 682,079,852 516,000,000 130,000,000 234,979,183 2,023,557,200 
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As at Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) 
Amount in Rs. 

Particulars Notes 0-3 Months 3-12 Months 1-2 Years Over 2 
Years 

No Stated 
Maturity 

Total 

Financial assets        

Financial assets measured 
at amortised cost 

7 362,171,871 647,500,000 68,000,000 688,000,000 -    1,765,671,871 

Financial assets measured 
at FVOCI 

8 - - - - 170,946,059 170,946,059 

Other financial assets 9 4,002,500 - - - - 4,002,500 

Insurance receivables 9 -    508,887,070 -    -    -    508,887,070 

Cash and cash equivalent 14 78,888,171 - - - - 78,888,171 

Total financial assets  445,062,542 1,156,387,070 68,000,000 688,000,000 170,946,059 2,528,395,671 

Financial liabilities        

Insurance payables 18 -    672,175,168 - - - 672,175,168 

Other financial liabilities 18 -    10,522,039 - - - 10,522,039 

Total financial liabilities  -    682,697,207 - - - 682,697,207 

Excess liquidity  445,062,542 473,689,863 68,000,000 688,000,000 170,946,059 1,845,698,464 

33.6 Market risk 
Market risk is the risk of possible adverse movements in the value of financial instrument due to change 
in market factors, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, and will affect the 
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is the aggregation of: 
▪ Interest rate risk 
▪ Foreign currency risk 
▪ Price risk 
iii. Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in interest rates.  
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
fixed deposits and short-term deposits with banks and financial institutions. The company monitors its 
interest rate risk on a periodic basis by analyzing the movement in interest rate and manages its cash 
flows. 
iv. Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in 
foreign exchange rates. 
The Company faces minimal risk due to foreign currency since it does not have material assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currency. The Company maintains dollar account with commercial banks 
the balance of which is US$ 934,229.37 equivalent to Rs. 102,165,109 (2074-75: US$ 102,504.69 
equivalent to Rs. 11,207,862). 
v. Price risk 
Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the price of the 
securities or portfolio of securities. 
The Company classifies its investment portfolio into debt securities, equity instruments and units of 
mutual fund. The debts securities are predominantly held in fixed deposits with commercial banks and 
other financial institutions and are not traded in the market and the price risk on these securities is 
negligible. In respect of investment in equity instrument and units of mutual funds, which are listed and 
traded in the market through Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd., the management follows the guidelines as 
mentioned in the investment policy and monitors the price of these securities on a regular basis.  
The Company holds investment in quoted equity instruments of Rs. 55,694,639 (2074-75: Rs. 39,754,081) 
and in units of mutual fund of Rs. 17,267,744 (2074-75: Rs. 18,280,278). Increase/decrease in the prices 
of these securities by 10 basis points with all other variables held constant, would result a gain / loss of 
Rs. 7,296,238 (2074-75: Rs. 5,803,436) in other comprehensive income. 



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

73 
 

33.7 Operational risk 
This is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company’s 
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from external factors other than credit, market 
and liquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted 
standard of corporate governance. Operational failures could result in producing misleading financial 
information, loss of return, financial penalties from regulators or damage to the reputation of the 
Company. 
The Company has controls of effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisations, training and 
assessments procedures. Corporate governance standards are strictly implemented by the board of 
directors. Risks from change in regulatory environment, technology are monitored in its strategic planning 
and processes. 
34. Fair value 
The following presents the fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on 
a recurring basis: 

Amount in Rs. 

Particulars Fair 
value 

hierarchy 
(level) 

As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Financial assets    

Measured at fair value through OCI    

Equity shares – quoted 1 55,694,639 39,754,081 

Equity shares – unquoted 3 162,016,800 112,911,700 

Units of mutual funds – quoted 1 17,267,744 18,280,278 

Sub-total  234,979,183 170,946,059 

Measured at amortised cost    

Fixed deposits 3 1,753,090,440 1,765,671,871 

Sub-total  1,753,090,440 1,765,671,871 

Total financial assets  1,988,069,623 1,936,617,930 

The carrying amounts of other financial assets, insurance receivables, cash and cash equivalents, 
insurance payables and other financial liabilities are same as their fair values, due to their short-term 
nature. 
An explanation of each level is provided below: 
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed 
equity instruments and units of mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity 
instruments and units of mutual fund which are traded on the stock exchanges is valued using the closing 
price as at the reporting date. 
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using 
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on 
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2. 
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3. 
35. Employee defined benefit assets / obligations 
A defined benefit plan is a post employment benefit plan other than defined contribution plan. The 
Company provides for gratuity and earned leave under defined benefit plans to its employees. The 
gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of 
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employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and years of employment with the 
Company. Gratuity is funded and deposited with Citizen Investment Trust towards meeting the gratuity 
obligation. 
 
Citizen Investment Trust is a public financial organization established under the Citizen Investment Trust 
Act, 2047. The major shareholders of Citizen Investment Trust are Nepal Government, Nepal Rastra Bank, 
Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd., Rastriya Beema Sansthan. Its shares are listed on Nepal Stock Exchange. Citizen 
Investment Trust operates and manages various types of retirement schemes / programs. The Gratuity 
Fund Scheme is operated by a committee of Citizen Investment Trust in accordance with terms and 
conditions of Gratuity Scheme Operation Procedure, 2055 as approved by board of Citizen Investment 
Trust. 
 
The earned leave plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination 
of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and number of unused 
accumulated leaves balances of annual leave and sick leave. Earned leave is unfunded. 
 
The value of these defined benefit plans is determined by external independent actuary as at the reporting 
dated, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about 
the discount rates, salary increment rate, employees’ attrition rate and balance service period of 
employees. Due to long term nature of the plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainties. 

 
35.1 Gratuity plan 
i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation: 

Amount in Rs. 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Obligation at the beginning of the year 50,464,456 35,834,821 

Current service cost 3,215,771 2,900,055 

Past service cost 800,030 -    

Interest cost 4,686,511 2,866,786 

Benefit payments from plan assets (7,626,712) (250,628) 

Actuarial (gain) / loss - Financial assumption changes (3,124,624) - 

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to demographic assumption (285,148)  

Actuarial (gain) / loss - Experience adjustments (3,717,130) 9,113,422 

Obligation at the end of the year 44,413,154 50,464,456 

j. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets: 
Amount in Rs. 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 52,918,881 41,641,165 

Contribution by Company 2,032,829 9,601,441 

Expected return on plan assets 4,762,699 3,331,293 

Actuarial gains / (losses) (1,709,510) (1,404,390) 

Benefits paid (7,626,712) (250,628) 

Plan assets at the end of the year 50,378,187 52,918,881 
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k. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets to the 
assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial positions at the end of the year: 

Amount in Rs. 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Fair value of planned assets 44,413,154 52,918,881 

Present value of obligation 50,378,187 50,464,456 

Assets recognised in statement of financial position (5,965,033) 2,454,425 

 
 

 
l. Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss: 

Amount in Rs. 

 For the year ended on 

 Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Recognised in profit or loss   

Current service cost 3,215,771 2,900,055 

Past service cost 800,030 - 

Net Interest Cost (76,188) (464,507) 

Total expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 3,939,613 2,435,548 

   

Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive 
income 

  

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to financial assumption changes in 
DBO 

(3,124,624) - 

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to demographic assumption (285,148) - 

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to experience on DBO (3,717,130) 9,113,422 

Actuarial gains / (loss) on planned assets 1,709,510 1,404,390 

Total re-measurements included in other comprehensive 
income 

(5,417,392) 10,517,812 

   

Total defined benefit cost recognised in statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income 

(1,477,779) 12,953,360 

 
m. Investment details of plan assets: 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Gratuity fund managed by Citizen Investment Trust 100% 100% 

 
n. Actuarial assumptions: 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Discount rate (per annum) 6.5% 9% 
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 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.5% 9% 

Rate of increase in compensation levels 5% 8% 

Attrition rate 9.3% 1% 

Average attained age 34.62 35.85 

Average past service of employees (years) 7.58 8.63 

Total monthly salary 3,207,060 2,935,115 

Number of employees 145 124 

Mortality rates Nepali Assured  
Lives Mortality 

(2009) 

Nepali Assured  
Lives Mortality 

(2009) 

 
o. Sensitivity analysis: 
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is: 

Amount in Rs. 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Discount Rate + 100 basis points  (2,812,675)  49,687,124  

Discount Rate - 100 basis points  3,471,503   51,277,943  

Salary Escalation Rate + 100 basis points  3,266,403   51,281,779  

Salary Escalation Rate - 100 basis points  (2,643,375)  49,676,524  

 
p. Effect of the defined benefit on the entity’s future cash flows is: 

Amount in Rs. 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Year 1  4,328,875  29,843,760 

Year 2  6,539,043  4,597,660 

Year 3  4,991,542  222,081 

Year 4  5,071,538  2,395,766 

Year 5  3,308,366  2,200,429 

Next 5 years  17,662,783  18,360,012 

35.2 Earned leave plan 
q. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation: 

Amount in Rs. 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Obligation at the beginning of the year 4,128,778 4,381,129 

Current service cost 838,275 403,194 

Interest cost 409,312 269,646 

Benefit payments from plan assets (1,871,523) (2,021,109) 

Actuarial (gain) / loss - Financial assumption changes - - 
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 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Actuarial (gain) / loss - Experience adjustments 1,835,267 1,095,918 

Obligation at the end of the year 5,340,110 4,128,778 

 
r. Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss: 

Amount in Rs. 

 For the year ended on 

 Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Recognised in profit or loss   

Current service cost 838,275 403,194 

Net Interest Cost 409,312 269,646 

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to experience on DBO 1,835,267 1,095,918 

Total defined benefit cost recognised in statement of 
profit or loss 

3,082,854 1,768,758 

 
s. Actuarial assumptions: 

 As at 
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

As at 
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Discount rate (per annum) 6.5% 9% 

Rate of increase in compensation levels 5% 8% 

Attrition rate 9.3% 1% 

Average attained age 35.63 38.73 

Total leave balance days 6428 4723 

Mortality rates Nepali Assured  
Lives Mortality 

(2009) 

Nepali Assured  
Lives Mortality 

(2009) 
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36. Segment Reporting 
For the year ended on Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) 

Amount in Rs. 

 
Particulars 

Line of business  
Unallocated 

 
Total Fire Marine Motor Engineering Aviation Misc. Agriculture Micro 

Gross premiums 120,957,632 34,794,656 242,989,593 257,366,542 310,641,808 464,030,362 27,838,279 412,928 -    1,459,031,800 

Premiums ceded to 
reinsurers 

117,112,048 28,537,378 52,168,842 253,611,039 308,023,220 398,091,596 22,270,459 -    - 1,179,814,582 

Net premiums  3,845,584   6,257,278   190,820,751   3,755,503   2,618,588   65,938,766   5,567,821  412,928  -    279,217,218 

Fees and Commission 
Income 

 28,239,322   5,413,446  14,836,372 18,135,888 21,618,335 47,819,988 5,975,679  -     -    142,039,030 

Investment income  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    180,559,508 180,559,508 

Net realised gains / 
(losses) 

 -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    

Other income  101,090   24,990   893,260   3,820   40   457,880   68,870  192,268 1,254,221 2,807,412 

Other revenue  28,340,412   5,438,436  15,729,632 18,139,708 21,618,375 48,277,868 6,044,549 192,268 181,813,729 325,594,977 

Total revenue 32,185,996 11,695,714  206,550,383 21,895,211 24,236,963 114,216,634 11,612,369 605,196 181,813,729 604,812,195 

Gross benefits and claims 
paid 

 12,279,930   8,928,660   111,152,713   3,019,700   683,439,972   80,529,447   42,107,265  436,330  -    (941,894,017) 

Claims recovered from 
reinsurers 

 11,687,285   5,190,976   8,477,380   1,775,459   682,926,819   22,977,618   33,685,812   -     -    766,721,349 

Net benefits and claims  592,645   3,737,684   102,675,333   1,244,241   513,153   57,551,829   8,421,453  436,330  -    (175,172,668) 

Changes in insurance 
contract liabilities 

(5,734,098) 2,693,423 (27,862,473) (17,883,849) (10,896,446) (33,033,209) (17,148,382) 201,009 -    109,664,024 

Changes in insurance 
contract liabilities 

(5,734,098) 2,693,423 (27,862,473) (17,883,849) (10,896,446) (33,033,209) (17,148,382) 201,009 -    109,664,024 

Other operating and 
administrative expenses 

(16,210,998) (5,014,315) (35,669,976) (33,547,626) (38,841,075) (60,592,504) (9,471,130) (245,756) (1,462,679) (201,056,060) 

Total benefits, claims 
and other expenses 

(21,352,451) 1,416,792 39,142,884 (50,187,233) (49,224,368) (36,073,884) (18,198,059) 391,583 (1,462,679) (266,564,704) 

Segment results 53,538,447 10,278,922 167,407,499 72,082,444 73,461,331 150,290,518 29,810,428 213,613 183,276,408 338,247,491 

Income tax expenses          (102,236,109) 

Profit for the year          236,011,382 
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For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) 

Amount in Rs. 

 
Particulars 

Line of business  
Unallocated 

 
Total Fire Marine Motor Engineering Aviation Misc. Agriculture Micro 

Gross premiums 122,482,519 22,627,130 248,108,766 236,990,487 197,023,890 325,413,059 38,278,788 51,930 - 1,190,976,569 

Premiums ceded to 
reinsurers 

120,451,766 15,598,714 14,108,808 233,095,864 195,436,992 252,841,336 30,623,030 - - 862,156,510 

Net premiums 2,030,753 7,028,416 233,999,958 3,894,623 1,586,898 72,571,723 7,655,758 51,930 - 328,820,059 

Fees and Commission 
Income 

18,611,444 7,098,303 3,563,324 20,629,272 13,968,065 9,320,022 27,895,661 1,967,984 - 103,054,074 

Investment income - - - - - - - - 148,786,948 148,786,948 

Net realised gains / (losses) - - - - - - - - 1,829,669 1,829,669 

Other income 63,890 28,560 850,200 3,280 40 378,350 80,150 1,360 14,734,780 16,140,610 

Other revenue 18,675,334 7,126,863 4,413,524 20,632,552 13,968,105 9,698,372 27,975,811 1,969,345 165,351,397 269,811,301 

Total revenue 20,706,087 14,155,279 238,413,482 24,527,175 15,555,003 82,270,095 35,631,569 2,021,274 165,351,397 598,631,360 

Gross benefits and claims 
paid 

157,186,506 5,969,479 96,851,231 426,857,831 246,778,637 2,526,249,855 37,204,441 - - 3,497,097,980 

Claims recovered from 
reinsurers 

142,359,631 4,141,062 6,317,042 424,772,398 246,158,440 2,475,682,911 29,760,852 - - 3,329,192,336 

Net benefits and claims 14,826,875 1,828,417 90,534,189 2,085,433 620,197 50,566,944 7,443,589 - - 167,905,644 

Changes in insurance 
contract liabilities 

(7,003,270) 1,840,827 53,089,447 (2,412,713) 2,772,977 25,937,167 6,636,883 (1,270) -    80,860,048 

Changes in insurance 
contract liabilities 

(7,003,270) 1,840,827 53,089,447 (2,412,713) 2,772,977 25,937,167 6,636,883 (1,270) -    80,860,048 

Other operating and 
administrative expenses 

14,340,712 2,630,972 32,236,034 27,981,746 21,119,796 38,498,082 10,136,440 6,741 823,996 147,774,519 

Total benefits, claims and 
other expenses 

22,164,317 6,300,216 175,859,671 27,654,465 24,512,969 115,002,194 24,216,912 5,471 823,996 396,540,210 

Segment results (1,458,230) 7,855,064 62,553,812 (3,127,291) (8,957,966) (32,732,099) 11,414,657 2,015,803 164,527,401 202,091,150 

Income tax expenses          (60,984,203) 

Profit for the year          141,106,947 
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37. Related party disclosure 
The Company does not have any holding, subsidiary company and associate companies. 
t. Key management personnel 
Key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Company. Key management personnel include the board of directors and 
chief executive officer of the Company as follows: 

Name of key management personnel Designation 

Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Chairman 

Mr. Bikram Krishna Shrestha Director 

Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Director 

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Public Director 

Mrs. Nura Kumari Sharma Public Director 

Mr. Dashrath Lal Shrestha Independent Director 

Mr. Sushil Bajracharya Chief Executive Officer 

u. Transaction with key management personnel 
Remuneration and employment benefits including bonus paid to chief executive office during the year 
amount to Rs. 4,966,799 (2074-75: Rs. 3,755,344). Meeting fees paid to the directors during the year 
amounts to Rs. 919,500 (2074-75: Rs. 1,101,500). 
38. Commitment and contingencies 
The company does not have any capital commitments and other contingent liabilities as on the date of 
statement of financial position. 
39. Liability adequacy test 
The Company has engaged TransValue Consultants of Mumbai, India, an external independent actuary, 
to actuarially determine the amount of outstanding claims reserves (OCR), incurred but not reported 
(IBNR) claims and unexpired risk reserve (URR) as part of liability adequacy test (LAT). This test is done by 
the Company annually and the required reserves are recognised as per the amount determined under 
liability adequacy test and regulatory requirements of the Insurance Board of Nepal. IBNR is calculated 
using Basic Chain Ladder Method. Liability is recognized at higher of the two estimated liabilities. 
Following assumptions are used by actuaries for determining the liabilities of the Company as required 
under NFRS 4. 
v. Accounting policy 
The company uses NFRS 4 which provides a framework for determining the insurance contract liabilities 
together with the regulatory specification of Insurance Board of Nepal for estimating insurance contract 
liabilities. This being the first year of adoption and application of NFRS it is expected that the accounting 
policy document shall undergo changes so as to implement the regulatory requirement of Insurance Board 
and experience of the Company in future as business develops. 
w. Cash flow 
Cash flow considered and estimations are as follows: 
Income side: 
▪ Premium  
▪ Reinsurance claims 
▪ Reinsurance commission 

Outflow side: 
▪ Claims 
▪ Reinsurance premium 
▪ Commission for intermediaries 
▪ Expenses 
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The current liability estimates are not based on present value of future cash flows since the portfolio size 
is very small. 
x. Valuation method and assumption 
For all one-year policies, except for marine cargo open cover policies, the unexpired risk reserve is 
determined on 1/365th basis, assuming the risk is uniform over the policy period. 
For shorter than one-year marine cargo policies, unexpired risk reserve is determined: 
i. Using straight-line method over the policy term; or 
ii. In the absence of data required for (i) above, using the last 3 months’ premium for the relevant period 

of implementing regulations. 
y. Discounting Policy 
No discounting policy has been used. The estimates of liability for insurance contracts are carried out on 
non-discounting basis as the term of the liability does not exceed one year and pricing of the premium is 
on non-discounting basis. 
z. Aggregation practices 
When applying an existing accounting policy, the aggregation practices follows that practice already 
established in that policy. When using an NAS 37 measure of future cash flows, the test shall be made at 
the level of portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risk and managed together as a single 
portfolio. 
The portfolio of insurance contract as at the reporting date is very small, hence no aggregation has been 
considered. 
 
40. Reconciliations to financial statements 
40.1 Reconciliation of equity 
Reconciliation of equity as reported under NFRS and GAAP is summarised below: 

Amount in Rs. 

  As at  
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

 As at  
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Total equity as per GAAP [A] 1,752,563,618 1,589,877,376 

NFRS adjustments    

Fair value reserve on financial investment measured through 
OCI 

2,351,291 316,964 

Actuarial reserve on gratuity plan 12,163,335 8,371,168 

Net changes in retained earnings   

Gratuity  (18,039,731) (16,132,947) 

Leave  1,288,452  2,499,779 

Deferred commission income  (188,788,276) (132,525,169) 

Amortisation of commission income  132,525,169  85,222,434 

Deferred commission expense  23,047,260  17,493,027 

Amortisation of commission expense  (17,493,027) (11,618,648) 

Unexpired risk reserve (158,964,388) 130,167,911 

Reinsurance assets on unexpired risk reserve 158,964,390 (140,857,770) 

Outstanding claims  1,145,521  - 

Incurred but not reported claims  (9,416,948) (69,114,690) 

Reinsurance asset on outstanding claims  (10,120,917) -    

Reversal of provision for investment  3,576,411  4,114,629 

Depreciation and amortisation  2,252,893  509,832 
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  As at  
Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

 As at  
Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Deferred tax on temporary differences 24,191,994 38,988,481 

Adjustment of withdrawn assets  535,749  -    

Operating lease adjustment  (1,152,537) -    

Reclassification of proposed dividend 38,520,000 - 

Total adjustments [B] (3,413,359) (82,564,999) 

Total equity as per NFRS 1,749,150,259 1,507,312,377 

i. Under GAAP, gratuity and earned leave is recognised on accrual basis. Under NFRS, gratuity and 
earned leave is measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit 
method as valued by an external independent actuary. Remeasurement gain on valuation of gratuity 
is recognised in statement of other comprehensive income. 

ii. Under GAAP, fees and commission income and fees and commission expenses is recognised as income 
and expenses respectively on the basis of amount received or receivable and amount paid or payable. 
Under NFRS, fees and commission income received, and fees and commission expenses incurred 
during the financial year arising from writing or renewing of insurance contracts are deferred and 
amortised over the period in which the related revenues are earned.  

iii. Under GAAP, unexpired risk reserve is recognised as per the regulatory requirements of Insurance 
Board of Nepal at 50% of the net premium income. Under NFRS, unexpired risk reserve is recognised 
at an amount higher of the amount determined by external independent actuary under liability 
adequacy test result or regulatory requirements on gross basis. Reinsurance assets as such unexpired 
risk reserve is created and recognised on gross basis. 

iv. Under GAAP, outstanding claim is booked on net basis after deducting the amount recoverable from 
reinsurers. Also, IBNR was recognised at 15% of such net outstanding claims. Under NFRS, outstanding 
claim reserve and IBNR is recognised at an amount higher of the amount determined by external 
independent actuary under liability adequacy test result or regulatory requirements on gross basis. 
Reinsurance assets as such outstanding claim reserve is created and recognised on gross basis. 

v. Under GAAP, dividend payable on equity shares is recognised as a liability in the period to which it 
relates. Under NFRS, dividends to shareholders are recognised in the period when it is declared by the 
board of directors for interim dividend and by members in a general meeting for the final dividend. 

vi. Under GAAP, investment in equity instrument and units of mutual funds are measured at cost. Under 
NFRS, this is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income with fair value fluctuations 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 

vii. Under NFRS, the carrying amount for certain items of assets and liabilities differs from the carrying 
amount of these assets and liabilities as per GAAP. Income tax has been recognised as per the 
provisions of Income Tax Act, 2058 and the temporary differences arising on such differences are 
recognised through deferred tax. As per the regulatory requirement, the additional amount 
recognised for deferred assets due to transition to NFRS has been transferred from retained earnings 
to deferred tax reserve. 

viii. Under NFRS, the total lease liability of the cancellable operating lease arrangements to be paid over 
the arrangement period has been recognized on straight line basis and differs from GAAP due to 
recognition of lease expenses on actual incurred basis.  
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40.2 Reconciliation of profit for the year 
Reconciliation of profit for the year as reported under NFRS and GAAP is summarised below: 

Amount in Rs. 

 For the year ended on 

 Ashad 31, 2076 
(July 16, 2019) 

Ashad 32, 2075 
(July 16, 2018) 

Profit for the year as per GAAP 202,303,622 141,858,814 

NFRS resultant adjustments:   

Impact of adjustment of employee benefit   

Gratuity (1,906,785) 6,477,501 

Earned leave (1,211,327) 940,738 

Impact of change in depreciation and amortisation   

On property, plant and equipment 1,361,597 570,348 

On intangible assets 381,464 (60,516) 

Impact of withdrawn assets   

On written off assets 294,708 - 

On disposal of assets 241,041 - 

Impact of deferrals and amortization   

Commission income amortised 47,302,735 49,234,710 

Commission income deferred (56,263,107) (47,302,735) 

Commission expenses amortized (5,874,379) (7,443,481) 

Commission expenses deferred 5,554,233 5,874,379 

Impact of changes in insurance contract liabilities   

In unexpired risk reserve (289,132,299) 130,167,911 

In reinsurance assets on unexpired risk reserve 299,822,160 (140,857,770) 

In outstanding claim reserve 1,145,522 500,001 

In IBNR 59,697,742 (4,414,692) 

In reinsurance assets on OCR (10,120,916) (498,590) 

Impact of reversal of provision   

On investment in equity instruments (538,218) 2,951,354 

Impact of operating lease liability (1,152,537)  

Impact of deferred Tax (14,796,487) 1,209,250 

Income tax of previous years (1,097,386) (1,501,502) 

Impact of share issue expenses directly charged to equity - 3,401,227 

Total adjustments 34,805,146 749,635 

Profit for the year as per NFRS 236,011,382 141,106,947 

NFRS Profit amount differs from GAAP due to remeasurement of deferred gross premium income, 
deferred premium ceded to reinsurer, deferred fee and commission income, deferred Reinsurance 
commission expense, deferred agent commission expense, gratuity and leave encashment change as per 
actuarial valuation, change in depreciation and amortization expenses due to change in depreciation 
method, impact of carrying amount of withdrawn assets, change in outstanding claim, change in reversal 
of provision for loss on investment, change in incurred but not reported and operating lease liability 
recognized on straight-line basis. 
 
Profit for the year as per NFRS is Rs. 236,011,382 and profit for the year as per GAAP is Rs. 202,303,622 
which exceeds by Rs. 34,805,146. As per the circular issued by Insurance Board of Nepal, the excess profit 
of Rs. 34,805,146 has been transferred to regulatory reserve. 
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40.3 Reconciliation of items of statement of cash flows 
Reconciliation of items of statement of cash flows for the year as reported under NFRS and GAAP is 
summarised below: 
 
a. For the year ended on Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) 

Amount in Rs. 

 As per NFRS As per GAAP Difference 

Cash flow from operating activities  
136,935,059.00  

 
135,350,951.00  

 1,584,105.00  

Cash flow used in investing activities  
110,031,544.00  

 
(68,469,780.00) 

 
178,501,327.00  

Cash Flow from financing activities  (87,994.00)  (87,994.00)  -    

Net changes in cash and cash equivalent  
246,878,609.00  

 66,793,177.00   
180,085,432.00  

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the 
year 

 78,888,171.00   57,510,441.00   21,377,730.00  

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year  
325,766,780.00  

 
124,303,618.00  

 
201,463,162.00  

b. For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) 
Amount in Rs. 

 As per NFRS As per GAAP Difference 

Cash flow from operating activities 126,662,785 108,555,047 18,107,738 

Cash flow used in investing activities (816,730,115) (706,711,819) (110,018,296) 

Cash Flow from financing activities 620,481,796 623,883,023 (3,401,227) 

Net changes in cash and cash equivalent (69,585,534) 25,726,251 (95,311,785) 

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the 
year 

148,473,705 31,784,190 116,689,515 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 78,888,171 57,510,441 21,377,730 

 
The reported differences as above is due to the followings in both the years: 
i. Short term call deposit has been reclassified to and presented as cash and cash equivalent under 

NFRS. However, the same is included and reported under investing activities under GAAP. 
ii. Foreign exchange gain/loss, summit expenses and miscellaneous income have been reported under 

operating activities under NFRS. However, these have been reported under investing activities under 
GAAP. 

iii. Share issue expenses pertaining to previous year have been reported under financing activities as 
adjustment to share premium. However, this have been reported under operating activities under 
GAAP. 
 

Reconciliation of items of statement of financial position 

Reconciliation of items of statement of financial position for the three years as reported under NFRS and 
GAAP is summarised as follows: 
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a. As at Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)                          Amount in Rs. 

 As per  
GAAP 

Re- 
classification 

Re-
measurement 

As per  
NFRS 

Assets     

Property, plant and equipment  56,236,293   -     2,805,129   59,041,422  

Capital work-in-progress  4,435,651   -     -     4,435,651  

Intangible assets  1,752,965   -     (16,488)  1,736,477  

Deferred tax assets (net)  16,138,492   -     17,971,438   34,109,930  

Financial investment     

Financial investment measured 
at amortised cost 

 1,743,000,000   10,090,440   -     1,753,090,440  

Financial investment measured 
at FVOCI 

 228,043,787   -     6,935,396   234,979,183  

Other financial assets  26,358,207   172,965,316   -     199,323,523  

Reinsurance assets  -     2,010,937,149   -     2,010,937,149  

Other assets  10,161,570   (10,090,440)  5,554,233   5,625,363  

Employee benefit assets  -     5,965,032   -     5,965,031  

Advance income tax (net) 8,943,803  -     -    8,943,803 

Cash and cash equivalent  325,766,780   -     -     325,766,780  

Total assets 2,420,837,548 2,189,867,497 33,249,708 4,643,954,752 

     

Equity     

Share capital  1,027,200,000   -     -     1,027,200,000  

Share premium 3,401,227 32,890,910  -    36,292,137 

Insurance fund 476,337,405  -     -    476,337,405 

Catastrophic reserves 42,723,770  -     -    42,723,770 

Other reserves 46,138,492 34,805,146 38,706,625 119,650,263 

Proposed bonus share 41,088,000 (41,088,000)  -     -    

Retained earnings 115,674,724 11,911,944 (80,639,984) 46,946,684 

Total equity 1,752,563,618 38,520,000 (41,933,359) 1,749,150,259 

     

Liabilities     

Insurance contract liabilities 252,737,683 2,010,937,149 18,392,341 2,282,067,173 

Financial liabilities 316,637,409 172,965,316  -    489,602,726 

Other liabilities 98,898,836 (38,520,000) 57,415,648 117,794,484 

Employee benefit obligations  2  5,965,032 (624,923) 5,340,110 

Total liability 668,273,930 2,151,347,497 75,183,066 2,894,804,493 

Total equity and liabilities 2,420,837,548 2,189,867,497 33,249,708 4,643,954,752 

The NFRS balance of assets differ from GAAP balance is due to remeasurement of deferred tax assets 
recognized on gratuity and leave, insurance contract liabilities, deferred and amortised commission 
income and expenses, change in depreciation policy of property, plant and equipment, fair value on 
investment on share and mutual fund and remeasurement of operating lease liability on straight line basis. 
Insurance receivables and payables have been grossed up in respect of insurance receivables and 
payables. The NFRS balance of liability differs from GAAP due to remeasurement of insurance contract 
liabilities as per NFRS 4, gratuity and leave encashment liability recognition as per actuarial valuation and 
deferred reinsurance commission income.  
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NFRS balance of equity differ from the GAAP balance is due to remeasurement of Fair value reserve 
created on investment measured at fair value, actuarial reserve created on gratuity as per actuarial 
valuation, impact of gratuity and leave encashment in retained earnings, reversal of other provision, and 
adjustment of share issue cost. 
 
b. As at Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018) 

Amount in Rs. 

 As per  
GAAP 

Re- 
classification 

Re-
measurement 

As per  
NFRS 

Assets     

Property, plant and equipment 47,301,863 -    570,348 47,872,211 

Capital work-in-progress 600,000 -    -    600,000 

Intangible assets 771,626 -    (60,516) 711,110 

Deferred tax assets (net) 18,859,794 -    35,264,998 54,124,792 

Financial investment     

Financial investment 
measured at amortised cost 

1,758,000,000 7,671,871 -    1,765,671,871 

Financial investment 
measured at FVOCI 

166,378,626 
 

-    4,567,433 170,946,059 

Other financial assets 94,383,876 418,505,694 -    512,889,570 

Reinsurance assets -    1,862,093,677 (140,857,771) 1,721,235,906 

Other assets 43,557 -    5,874,379 5,917,936 

Employee benefit assets -    2,454,425 -    2,454,425 

Advance income tax (net) 19,661,951 - - 19,661,951 

Cash and cash equivalent 78,888,171 -    - 78,888,171 

Total assets 2,184,889,464 2,290,725,667 (94,641,129) 4,380,974,002 

     

Equity     

Share capital 1,027,200,000 - - 1,027,200,000 

Share premium - 39,693,364 (3,401,227) 36,292,137 

Insurance fund 373,824,944 -    - 373,824,944 

Catastrophic reserves 32,854,392 - - 32,854,392 

Retained earnings 107,138,247 (39,693,364) (126,840,385) (59,395,502) 

Other reserves 48,859,794 -    47,676,612 96,536,406 

Total equity 1,589,877,377 -    (82,565,000) 1,507,312,377 

     

Liabilities     

Insurance contract liabilities 300,989,499 1,862,093,677 (61,053,222) 2,102,029,954 

Financial liabilities 256,493,484  426,177,565 26,158 682,697,207 

Current tax liabilities (net) - - - - 

Other liabilities 37,529,107 - 47,276,578 84,805,686 

Employee benefit obligations (3) 2,454,425 1,674,356 4,128,778 

Total liability 595,012,087 2,290,725,667 (12,076,129) 2,873,661,625 

Total equity and liabilities 2,184,889,464 2,290,725,667 (94,641,129) 4,380,974,002 

The NFRS balance of assets differ from GAAP balance is due to remeasurement of deferred tax assets 
recognized on gratuity and leave, insurance contract liabilities, deferred and amortised commission 



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

87 
 

income and expenses, change in depreciation policy of property, plant and equipment, and fair value on 
investment on share and mutual fund. Insurance receivables and payables have been grossed up in 
respect of insurance receivables and payables. The NFRS balance of liability differs from GAAP due to 
remeasurement of insurance contract liabilities as per NFRS 4, gratuity and leave encashment liability 
recognition as per actuarial valuation and deferred reinsurance commission income 
 
NFRS balance of equity differ from the GAAP balance is due to remeasurement of fair value reserve 
created on investment measured at fair value, actuarial reserve created on gratuity as per actuarial 
valuation, impact of gratuity and leave encashment in retained earnings, reversal of other provision, and 
adjustment of share issue cost. 
 
41. Reconciliation to revised financial statements 
Reconciliation between the financial statements which were approved by the board of directors on Poush  
15, 2076 (December 31, 2019) and the revised financial statements amended as per the directions of the 
Insurance Board dated Magh 8, 2076 (January 22, 2020) has been provided as follows: 
 
41.1 Reconciliation to profit or loss 

Particulars As per  
       revised 

financials 

As per  
earlier 

financials 

Remarks 

Gross premiums 1,459,031,800 1,458,858,650 Micro insurance pool income 
recognized. 

Premiums ceded to reinsurers (1,179,814,582) (1,179,814,582)  

Net premiums 279,217,218 279,044,068  

Fees and Commission Income 142,039,030 142,038,203 Re-classification of reinsurance 
commission expense. 

Investment income 180,559,508 180,559,508  

Net realised gains / (losses)  -    -  

Other income 2,807,412 2,807,412  

Other revenue 325,594,977 325,405,122  

Total revenue 604,812,195 604,449,190  

Gross benefits and claims 
paid 

(941,894,017) (941,604,812) Claims paid in respect of micro 
pool income. 

Claims recovered from 
reinsurers 

766,721,349 766,721,349  

Net benefits and claims (175,172,668) (174,883,463)  

Changes in insurance contract 
liabilities 

109,664,024 109,750,599 Impact of change in URR as per 
GAAP. 

Changes in insurance 
contract liabilities 

109,664,024 109,750,599  

Other operating and 
administrative expenses 

(201,056,060) (200,894,779) Adjustment including the bonus 
amount on change of profit 

Total benefits, claims and 
other expenses 

(266,564,704) (266,027,643)  

Profit before tax 338,247,491 338,421,547  

Income tax expenses (102,236,109) (102,288,326)  

Profit for the year 236,011,382 236,133,221  
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41.2 Reconciliation to financial statements 

 As per 
modified 
financials 

As per 
unmodified 
financials 

Remarks 

Assets    

Property, plant and equipment  59,041,422   59,041,422   

Capital work-in-progress  4,435,651   4,435,651   

Intangible assets  1,736,477   1,736,477   

Deferred tax assets (net)  34,109,930   34,109,930   

Financial investment    

Financial investment 
measured at amortised cost 

 1,753,090,440   1,753,090,440   

Financial investment 
measured at FVOCI 

 234,979,183   234,979,183   

Other financial assets  199,323,523   199,323,523   

Reinsurance assets  2,010,937,149   2,010,937,149   

Other assets  5,625,363   5,625,363   

Employee benefit assets  5,965,031   5,965,031   

Advance income tax (net) 8,943,803 8,942,886 Change in profit for the year 

Cash and cash equivalent  325,766,780   325,766,780   

Total assets 4,643,954,752 4,643,953,835  

    

Equity    

Share capital  1,027,200,000   1,027,200,000   

Share premium 36,292,137  36,292,137   

Insurance fund 476,337,405 476,398,325 Change in profit for the year 

Catastrophic reserves 42,723,770 42,729,861 Change in profit for the year 

Other reserves 119,650,263 84,845,117 Transfer to regulatory reserve 

Retained earnings 46,946,684 81,806,658 Transfer to regulatory reserve 
and change in profit for the 
year 

Total equity 1,749,150,259 1,749,272,098  

    

Liabilities    

Insurance contract liabilities 2,282,067,173 2,281,980,598 Change in URR due to change 
in gross premium 

Financial liabilities 489,602,726 489,589,890 Liability booked with respect 
to micro premium 

Other liabilities 117,794,484 117,771,139 VAT liability booked with 
respect to micro premium 

Employee benefit obligations 5,340,110 5,340,110  

Total liability 2,894,804,493 2,894,681,737  

Total equity and liabilities 4,643,954,752 4,643,953,835  
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cg';"rL – % 

Joj:yfkg vr{  -?=_ 

qm=;+= ljj/0f  o; jif{  ut aif{ 

1 sd{rf/L vr{ - cg';"rL %=! adf]lhd _ 73,410,774  69,238,776  

2 3/ ef8f 14,433,373  10,151,966  

3 lah'nL tyf kfgL 2,849,966  2,303,008  

4 dd{t tyf ;Def/     

  -s_ ejg  61,067  89,460  

  -v_ ;jf/L ;fwg 630,048  611,754  

  -u_ sfof{no pks/0f 160,183  241,074  

  -3_ cGo 479,081  294,839  

5 ;+rf/ 4,324,254  3,651,376  

6 5kfO{ tyf d;nGb 3,535,941  2,945,655  

7 vr{ x'g] sfof{no ;fdfg 733,721  765,373  

8 kl/jxg/OGwg 2,547,557  2,096,631  

9 e|d0f vr{ - eQf ;d]t _     

  -s_ cfGtl/s 601,346  605,910  

  -v_ j}b]lzs 1,694,888  711,071  

10 clestf{ tflnd 276,942  162,856  

11 clestf{ cGo -    -    

12 aLdfz'Ns 429,764  307,754  

13 ;'/Iff vr{ 697,060  444,600  

14 sfg"gL tyf k/fdz{ z'Ns 7,107,385  2,729,408  

15 kq klqsf tyf k':ts 83,220  102,921  

16 lj1fkg tyf k|rf/ k|;f/ 2,712,893  2,826,097  

17 Jofkf/ k|j4{g -    -    

18 cltyL ;Tsf/ 1,864,797  1,664,382  

19 rGbf tyf pkxf/ -    30,000  

20 ;+rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL vr{     

  -s_ a}7s eQf 702,500  639,500  

  -v_ cGo -    -    

21 cGo ;ldlt÷pk–;ldlt ;DaGwL vr{     

  -s_ a}7s eQf 217,000  462,000  
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  -v_ cGo -    -    

22 ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL vr{ -    755,065  

23 n]vf k/LIf0f ;DaGwL vr{     

  -s_ n]vf k/LIf0f z'Ns 445,000  145,000  

  -v_ s/ n]vf k/LIf0f z'Ns -    -    

  -u_ lj:t[t n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bg z'Ns 40,000  40,000  

  -3_ cGo z'Ns  50,000  50,000  

  -ª_ cfGtl/s n]vf kl/If0f vr{ 300,000  275,000  

  -r_ cGo vr{ -    -    

24 Jofh -    -    

25 a}+s rfh{ 521,161  475,325  

26 z'Ns tyf b:t'/ 1,738,080  1,258,909  

27 ¥xf; s§L 7,365,400  4,921,151  

28 x'nfs l6s6 786,880  465,470  

29 cGo     

  s_ljb]zL d'b|f ;6xLdf ePsf] gf]S;fg 5,726,213  -    

  v_ ;:yfut ;fdflhs bfloTj 386,835  229,315  

  u_ PleP;g ;lDd6 vr{ 1,835,785  1,787,762  

  3_ /ht holGt vr{ 3,528,512  -    

  ª_ l8lh6n dfs]{l6Ë vr{ 3,366,500  -    

  r_ n3' aLdfsf] Joj:yfkg vr{ 126,762  -    

  af8+kmf8+sf] nflu hDdf 145,770,888  113,479,408  

1 gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa 14,577,089  11,347,941  

2 clUg aLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fa 10,886,528  10,531,677  

3 ;fd'lb|s aLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fa 3,071,548  1,954,177  

4 df]6/ aLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fa 21,635,640  21,082,480  

5 7]s]bf/ tyf O{GhLlgol/ª aLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fa 23,143,575  20,405,577  

6 xjfO{ aLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fa 28,224,203  17,138,702  

7 laljw aLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fa 41,923,293  28,164,955  

8 s[ifL tyf kz' k+IfL jLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fj 2,157,408  2,849,430  

9 n3' jLdfsf] cfo Joo lx;fj 151,603  4,469  

hDdf 145,770,887  113,479,408  
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cg';"rL %=! 

sd{rf/L vr{ 
  

qm=;+= ljj/0f o; aif{  ut aif{  

1 tna 44,211,273  39,808,971  

2 eQf 13,464,619  7,935,080  

3 bz} vr{ 3,403,869  3,140,340  

4 ;~rosf]ifdf yk 3,602,655  3,090,266  

5 tflnd vr{ 1,748,474  1,345,842  

6 kf]zfs 1,175,400  1,034,462  

7 cf}ifwf]krf/ -    -    

8 aLdf 1,487,913  1,261,265  

9 k]G;g tyf pkbfg vr{ tyf Joj:yf 2,032,828  8,913,054  

10 ljbf afktsf] vr{ tyf Joj:yf 1,871,523  2,709,496  

11 kl/jxg ;'ljwf afkt vr{ 412,220  -    

  hDdf 73,410,774  69,238,776  

    
 

  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

112 
 

 
  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

113 
 

 



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

114 
 

 
  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

115 
 

 

  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

116 
 

 

 
 

  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

117 
 

 
  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

118 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

119 
 

 

 
  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

120 
 

 



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

121 
 

 



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

122 
 

 
  



Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.  Annual Report 2075-76 

123 
 

cg';"rL–25 

laQLo ljj/)f;+u ;DalGwt k|d'v n]vf gLltx? 

 

-s_ kl/ro 

lxdfnog hg/n O{G:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]* -o; kl% æsDkgLÆ elgPsf]_ g]kfndf :yflkt 

l;ldt bfloTj ePsf] sDkgL xf] . o; sDkgLsf] /lhi^*{ sfof{no sf&df)*f}df /x]sf]  

% . of] sDkgL g]kfn lwtf]kq ljlgdo jhf/ lnld^]*df ;"lrs[t % . of] sDkgL g]kfndf 

lglh{jg ljdssf] ?kdf sfo{/t % .  

 

cfly{s jif{ 2075 ;fn >fj)f 1 ut] b]lv 2076 ;fn cfiff( 31 ut];Ddsf] ;+nUg 

ljlQo ljj/)fx? o; sDkgLsf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt 2076 ;fn kf}if dlxgf 15 ut]sf] 

a}&sjf^ kfl/t ul/Psfdf jLdf ;ldltsf] ldlt 2076 ;fn df# 8 ut]sf] lgb]{zg cg;f/ 

2076 ;fn df# 21 ut] kl/dflh{t ljlQo ljj/)f kfl/t ul/Psf] % . 

 

-v_ ljlQo ljj/)fx? tof/ ubf{ cfwf/ dflgPsf n]vf gLltx? tn pNn]v ul/Psf %g\ . 

cGoyf n]lvPsf]df afx]s oL gLltx?sf] kfngf lg/Gt/ ?kdf ul/Psf] % .  

 

1= laQLo ljj/)f tof/Lsf cfwf/x?   

lxdfnog hg/n O{G:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld ]̂*sf]] lalQo ljj/)fx?g]kfnL ?k}oF+df k|:t't 

ul/Psf] % . oL ljj/)fx? P]ltxfl;s d'No cjwf/)ffsf] cfwf/df :ki^ ?kdf 

cGoyf pNn]v u/]sf]df afx]s k|f]befjL (Accrual) cfwf/df n]vf+sg u/L aLdf 

P]g Pj+ lgodfjnL 2049, aLdf ;ldltsf] lgb]{zg, sDkgL P]g 2063, g]kfn 

n]vfdfg tyf cGo k|rlnt n]vfdfg, tyf ;fdfGotM dfGo n]vfsf l;$fGtx?sf] 

clwgdf /lx tof/ ul/Psf %g\ . 
 

g]kfn r {̂*{ PsfpG ]̂G^ ;+:yf$f/f g]kfn ljlQo k|ltj]bgdfg (NFRS) ;DkÒ)f{ aLdf 

sDkgLx?nfO{ cf=j= 2073.74 b]lv nfu' ul/Psfn]o; jif{ %'§} g]kfn ljlQo 

k|ltj]bgdfg (NFRS) cg';f/ cfly{s ljj/)fx? tof/ ul/Psf] % . 
 

2=  l:y/ ;DklQ n]vf°g gLlt  

l:y/ ;DklQnfO{ ;f] sf] k/n d"Nodf ;+lrt Xf; s§f u/L b]vfOPsf] % . k/n 

d"No lgwf{/)f ubf{ vl/b d"No tyf ;f] vl/b ;+u nfu]sf ;DalGwt k|ToIf vr{x? 

hf]*L ul/Psf] % . 
 

 3= Xf; s§L gLlt  

l:y/ ;DklQx?sf] Xf; s§L cfos/ P]g, 2058 cg';f/ ;jf/L ;fwg, sfof{no 

;fdfg -kmlg{r/ tyf lkmS;\r;{, sDKo"^/ tyf ;"rgf k|ljwL pks/)f_, cGo ;DkQL 

/ ejgsf] s|dzM 20, 25, 15 / 5 k|ltztsf b/n] #^\bf] Xf; k|)ffnLsf] 

cfwf/df n]vf°g ul/Psf] % . 

 

;km\̂ j]/ ;DklQdf ePsf] vr{nfO{ 5 aif{df ckn]vg ug]{u/L Xf; s§Lul/Psf] % . 
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4= k"+hLs[t gul/g] ;DklQx? ;DaGwL n]vf°g gLlt  

 ?=5,000 ;Ddsf ;fdfgx?nfO{ k"+hLs[t gul/ vr{ n]Vg] ul/Psf] % . 

 

5=  cfos/ Joj:yf gLlt  

 cfos/ P]g, 2058 sf] clwgdf /lx cfos/ Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . 

 

s/ of]Uo cfo tyf n]vfdf b]lvg] cfosf] ;do cGt/fnaf^ x'g] leGgtfnfO{ :yug 

s/ (Deferred Tax) dfgL ;f]sf] Aoj:yf ul/Psf] % . :yug s/ ;DklQ (Deferred 

Tax Assets) kl% cfh{g x'g] s/ of]Uo cfoaf^ p&\g ;Sg] k|an ;Defjgf tyf 

Plsg geP;Dd o:tf ;DklQnfO{ ;DklQsf] ?kdf n]vf+sg ug]{ ul/Psf] %}g . 

 

6=  nufgL n]vf°g gLlt  

nufgL n]vf°gsf] ;DjGwdf sDkgLn] jLdf ;ldltsf] lgb]{zgsf] kl/lw leq/lx b]xfo 

jdf]lhdsf] gLlt cjnDjg u/]sf] % . 

 -s_ g]kfn ;/sf/sf] jrtkq jf C)fkq jf g]kfn ;/sf/sf] hdfgt k|fKt 

 C)fkqdf jf klJns lnld^]* sDkgLsf] jrtkq/C)fkqdf ul/Psf] nufgLnfO{ 

 cl°t d"No -Face Value_ jf k/n d"No dWo] h'g #^L % ;f]xL d"Nodf 

 d"Nof°g ul/Psf] % .  

-v_ v)* -s_ adf]lhd ul/Psf] nufgLsf] cl°t d"No eGbf k/n d"No al( 

ePdf To:tf] al( /sdnfO{ :yug ul/Psf] vr{ -Deferred Expenditure_ sf] 

?kdf n]vf°g u/L ;f] vr{nfO{ To:tf] nufgLsf] cjlw leq ;dfg'kflts 

cfwf/df -Prorata Basis_ ckn]vg ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

-u_ v)* -s_ adf]lhd ul/Psf] nufgLsf] cl°t d"No eGbf k/n d"No sd 

ePdf To:tf] km/s /sdnfO{ nufgL cjlw leq ;dfg'kflts cfwf/df 

nufgLaf^ cfosf] ?kdf n]vf°g ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

-#_ v)* -s_ jdf]lhdsf] art kq jf C)fkqsf] n]vf°g ul/Psf] d"No eGbf 

ahf/ d"No sd x'g uPdf To:tf] km/s /sd a/fa/sf] Joj:yf -Provision_ 

ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

-ª_ a}+s÷ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d'@tL lgIf]k jf gful/s nufgL sf]ifsf] nufgL 

of]hgfx?df ul/Psf] nufgLnfO{ ;f+jf /sddf n]vf°g ul/Psf] % .  

 t/ To:tf] nufgLsf] Dofb ;dfKtL kl% s'g} sf/)fjz tTsfn lkmtf{ x'g 

g;Sg] cj:yf >[hgf ePdf To:tf] nufgLnfO{ ztk|ltzt Joj:yf -Provision_ 

ul/Psf]  % . 

-r_ klAns lnld ]̂* sDkgLsf] ;"lrs[t z]o/df ul/Psf] nufgLnfO{ k/n d"Nodf 

b]vfpg] / z]o/df ul/Psf] nufgLsf] n]vf°g ul/Psf] d"No eGbf ahf/ 

d"No sd x'g uPdf To:tf] km/s /sd j/fj/ Joj:yf -Provision_ ug]{ 

gLlt cjnDjg ul/Psf] % . 

-%_ klAns lnld ]̂* sDkgLsf] ;+:yfks z]o/df nufgL ul/Psf] z]o/ k|rlnt 

sfg"g adf]lhd lwtf]kq ahf/df ;"lrs[t gePdf b]xfo jdf]lhd ul/g] gLlt 

cjnDjg ul/Psf] % . 
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-c_ z]o/df nufgL u/]sf] klAns lnld ]̂* sDkgLn] sf/f]af/ ug{] 

Ohfhtkq kfPsf] ldltn] tLg aif{;Dd To:tf] nufgLnfO{ k/n d"Nodf 

d"Nof°g ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

-cf_ z]o/df nufgL u/]sf] klAns lnld ]̂* sDkgLn] sf/f]af/ ug{] 

Ohfhtkq kfPsf] ldltn] tLg jif{kl% To:tf] nufgLnfO{ k/n d"Nodf 

b]vfO{ ;f] nufgL a/fa/sf] Joj:yf ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

-h_ sDkgLn] g]kfn k"glj{df sDkgL lnld ]̂*df u/]sf] nufgLnfO{ k/n d"Nodf 

b]vfpg] gLlt lnPsf] % .  

-em_ v)* -r_ jdf]lhd nufgL ul/Psf] z]o/ k|rlnt sfg"g jdf]lhd  lwtf]kq 

ahf/sf] ;"rLaf^ x ]̂df -Delisted);f] nufgL a/fa/sf] Joj:yf ug]{ ul/Psf] 

% . 

-`_ k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd sDkgLsf] :jfldTjdf gcfPsf] jf g/x]sf] z]o/, 

artkq, C)fkq jf cGo ;DklQnfO{ nufgLdf ;dfj]z ul/Psf] %}g. 

 

7=  ;^xL #^a( ;dfof]hg gLlt 
 

ljb]zL d'b|fdf /x]sf] ;DklQ tyf bfloTjnfO{ aiff{Gtsf] ljlgdo b/n] ?kfGt/ ul/Psf] 

% . ljb]zL d'b|fdf ePsf sf/f]jf/x?sf] n]vf+sg sf/f]jf/ ldltsf] ljlgdo b/df 

ul/Psf] %. ljlgdo b/af^ pTkGg km/snfO{ gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa tyf cfo Joo 

lx;fadf Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ?kdf n]vf+sg ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 
 

8=  aLdfz'Ns cfDbfgL n]vf°g gLlt  

jLdfz'Ns gubk|fKtLsf] -Cash Basis_ cfwf/df n]vf°g ul/Psf] % . t/ gub k|flKt 

ldlteGbf aLdfz'Ns e'QmfgL ug'{kg]{ ldlt kl% ePdf kl%Nnf] ldltdf z'Ns cfDbfgL 

hgfOPsf] % . k'gaL{df :jLsf/ ul/Psf] aLdfz'Ns cfDbfgLnfO{ k|f]befjL (Accural) 

cfwf/df n]vf°gul/Psf] % . 
 

9=  k'gaL{df sldzg cfDbfgL n]vf°g gLlt  

k'gaL{df sDkgLaf^ k|fKt sldzgnfO{ gub k|fKtL jf k'gaL{df sDkgLaf^ ;dy{g 

k|fKtLsf] cfwf/df cfDbfgL n]vf°g ul/Psf] % . 
 

10=  cGo cfo n]vf°g tyf jf¤*kmf¤* gLlt  

aLdf ;ldltsf] lgb]{zgsf] clwgdf /lx nufgL, shf{ tyf cGojf^ ePsf] cfonfO{ 

;DjlGwt jLdf Joj;fosf] rfn' cfly{s jif{df ;f] jLdf sf/f]jf/jf^ ePsf] v"b 

jrtnfO{ To; jLdf Joj;fosf] ef/ tyf sDkgLsf] ut cfiff( d;fGtsf] g]^ jy{ 

(Net Worth)df ckn]vg ug{ jf+ls nufgL lk|ldodnfO{ #^fO{ gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fjsf] 

ef/ dfgL;j} jLdf Joj;fosf] cfoJoo lx;fjdf jf+*kmf* ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 
 

11=  shf{ n]vf°g gLlt  

sDkgLn] k|bfg u/]sf] shf{nfO{ c;'nL x'g] kof{Kt cfwf/ ;lxt ;f¤jf /sddf 

n]vf°g ug]{ul/Psf] % . 
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12= Joj:yfkg vr{ jf¤*kmf¤* gLlt  

jLdf ;ldltsf] lgb]{zgsf] cfwf/df Joj:yfkg vr{sf] 10 k|ltzt /sd gfkmf 

gf]S;fg lx;fjdf vr{ b]vfO{ jf+sL 90 k|ltzt /sdnfO{ ;DjlGwt jLdf Joj;fosf] 

k|ToIf jLdfz'Nsdf clestf{ sldzg sl§ul/ x'g cfpg] /sdnfO{ To; jLdf 

Joj;fosf] ef/dfgL ;j} jLdf Joj;fosf] cfo Joo lx;fjdf jf+*kmf* 

ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

 

13=  aLdf bfjL e'QmfgL vr{ n]vf°g gLlt  

sDkgLn] bfjLsf] nfut u)fgf ubf{ aLdfn]v adf]lhd e'QmfgL ug'{kg]{ /sd tyf 

;f] bfjLkm%\of}{^sf] nflu cfjZos k/fdz{ tyf cg';Gwfg vr{ ;dfj]z u/L 

n]vf°gul/Psf] % . t/ aLdssf] kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Ln] u/]sf] sfdsf] kfl/>lds 

/ cGo vr{ afktsf] /sd;dfj]zul/Psf] %}g .  

 

14=  aLdf bfjL afkt bfloTj Joj:yf n]vf°g gLlt  

jLdf lgodfjnL, 2049 sf] lgod 15 -#_ cgÚ;f/;"lrt bfjLsf] cg'dflgt bfloTjdf 

sDkgLsf] c+z tyf >[hgf ePsf] t/ hfgsf/Ldf gcfPsf] (IBNR) Joj:yf /sdsf] 

115 k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . 

 

15= v'b gfkmf af¤*kmF¤* gLlt  

jLdf ;ldltsf] lgb]{zg cg'?k gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fjjf^ b]lvPsf] v'b gfkmfsf] 50 

k|ltzt /sdnfO{ ;DjlGwt jLdf Joj;fosf] cfo Joo lx;fjdf b]lvPsf] jrt 

/sdnfO{ ;f] jLdf ;DjlGw ef/ dfgL ;j} jLdf Joj;fosf] jLdfsf]ifdf jf+*kmf* 

ug]{ ul/Psf] % . ;fy} gf]S;fg ePsf] jLdf Joj;fosf] xsdf ;f]sf] ef/ ;ÚGo 

dflg gfkmf ePsf] jLdf Joj;fodf dfq gfkmf jf+*kmf+* ug]{ ul/Psf]% . 

 

16=  sd{rf/L pkbfg tyf ljbf afkt Joj:yf gLlt M 

 sd{rf/Lsf] pkbfg tyf ljbf afkt Joj:yf k|f]befljsf] (Accrual)cfwf/df n]vf°g 

 ul/ gful/s nufgL sf]ifdf hDdf ul/Psf] % .  

 

17= z+sf:kb cf;fdL Joj:yf gLlt 

k"glj{dsx?jf^ Jofn]G; sGkm/d];g k|fKt gePsf] lng kg]{ lx;fj zt k|ltztsf] 

lx;fjn] z+sf:kb c;fdL Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . 

 

18= ckn]vg vr{ n]vf°g gLlt  

k|f/lDes tyf k"j{ ;~rfng vr{x?nfO{ sDkgL ;+rfng ePs} aif{df vr{ n]Vg] 

ul/Psf] % . 

 

19= ljut jif{ ;DjGwL vr{x? 

ljut jif{ ;DjGwL vr{x? gfkmfgf]S;fg jf+*kmf* lx;fjdf b]vfpg] ul/Psf] % . 
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cg';"rL-26 

ljQLo ljj/)f;+u ;DalGwt n]vf ;DaGwL l^Kk)fLx? 

 

1= ;Defljt bfloTjx?  

 

 c_ r'¤Qmf jf e'QmfgL x'g af¤sL nufgL - %}g . 

 cf_  k|Tofe"lt k|lta$tf (Underwriting Commitments) - %}g . 

 O_  aLdfn]v cGtu{t eGbf afx]saf^ aLds pk/ bfjL k/]sf] t/ aLdsn] bfloTj  

  :jLsf/ gu/]sf] - %}g . 

 O{_  aLdsn] jf aLdssf] tk{maf^ lbOPsf] Uof/])^L - %}g . 

 p_  cGo bfloTj -%}g . 

 

2= e'QmfgL ug{ af¤sL bfjL afkt bfloTj d"Nof°g ubf{ cjnDag u/]sf] cfwf/x?   

 

jLdf lgodfjnL, 2049 sf] lgod 15-#_ sf] Joj:yf cg'?k ;"lrt ul/Psf] bfjLsf] 

cg'dflgt bfloTjdf sDkgLsf] c+zsf] 115 k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd bfjL jfkt Joj:yf 

ul/Psf] % . ;f] Joj:yfdf >[hgf ePsf] t/ hfgsf/Ldf gcfPsf (IBNR ) aLdf bfjL 

;d]tsf] Joj:yf ;dfj]z % . 

 

3= aLdssf] ;DklQdf cfPsf] ;Lldttf tyf ljjfbx? -%}g . 

 

4=  shf{, nufgL tyf l:y/ ;DklQsf] nflu ul/Psf] k|lta$tf -%}g . 

 

5= nufgL;+u ;DalGwt b]xfosf vl/b laqmL ;Demf}tfx?sf] d"No 

 

 c_ vl/b ul/Psf] ;DklQsf] :jfldTj k|fKt gePsf] - %}g . 

 cf_  laqmL ul/Psf] ;DklQsf] e'QmfgL k|fKt gePsf] - %}g . 

 

6= o; cfly{s jif{e/L ul/Psf] nufgL tyf ljls| lkmtf{ lnPsf] ljj/)f o;k|sf/ %g\ . 

-s_ o;jif{el/sf] yk nufgL o;k|sf/ %g\ . 

 

 o; aif{ ut aif{ 

jfl)fHo j}+sx?sf] d'@tL lgIf]k 1,249,500,000 1,554,500,000 

ljsfz j}+sx?sf] d'@tL lgIf]k 68,500,000 66,500,000 

ljQ sDkgLx?sf] d'@tL lgIf]k 7,500,000 1,000,000 

klJns lnld^]* s+= sf] z]o/  12,021,843 25,420,483 

;fd"lxs nufgL sf]ifdf nufgL - 11,677,480 

g]kfn k"glj{df sDkgL ln= sf] z]o/ - - 

hDdf 1,337,521,843 1,659,097,963 
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 -v_ laqmL÷lkmtf{ lnPsf] nufgLsf] ljj/)f o;k|sf/ %g\M 

  o; aif{ ut aif{ 

/fli «̂o jrt kqdf nufgL - - 

jfl)fHo j}+sx?sf] d'@tL lgIf]k 1,283,000,000 614,000,000 

ljsf; j}+sx?sf] d'@tL lgIf]k 56,500,000 82,000,000 

ljQ sDkgLx?sf] d'@tL lgIf]k 1,000,000 2,000,000 

hDdf 1,340,500,000 698,000,000 
 

7= a}+s df}Hbft lx;fa ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt a}+s÷ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lx;fa ldnfg :^]^d]G^ ;lxtsf] 

Joxf]/f 

;DalGwt a+}s / lalQo ;+:yf;+u lx;fa ldnfg ul/Psf] % . ;j} j}+s tyf ljlQo 

;+:yfx?jf^ k|fKt : ]̂^d]G^sf] cfwf/df lx;fj ldnfg (RECONCILIATION) ul/Psf %g\ . 
 

8= ;+sf:kb cf;fdL Joj:yf 

 -s_ aLds÷k'gaL{ds;+u lng' lbg' af¤sL lx;fa ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt aLds÷k'gaL{dssf] 

;dy{g  ;lxtsf] lx;fa ldnfg k|fKt % . ;dy{g lng jf+lssf] xsdf o; jif{ yk 

?=6,25,094 Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . 
 

9= sDkgLn] u/]sf] nufgL dWo] g]kfn ;/sf/ / g]kfn /fi «̂ j}+ssf] C)fkq jf g]kfn 

;/sf/sf] hdfgt k|fKt C)fkq/jrtkqdf u/]sf] nufgL jfx]s ;ldltn] tf]lsPsf] If]q leq 

/x]sf %g\ . 
 

10=  sDkgLsf] ;+rfns jf ;+rfns;+u ;DalGwt JolQm jf ;+:yf;+u ePsf] sf/f]af/   

sDkgLsf] ;+rfns jf ;+rfns ;+u ;DjlGwt JolQm jf ;+:yf ;+us'g} sf/f]jf/ ul/Psf] 

%}g . 
 

11= sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] ;DklQsf] ;'/If)fdf lnPsf] C)fsf] lwtf], zt{ tyf cf}lrTo  

 o; aif{sf] cGTodf s'g} ltg{ af+ls C)f g/x]sf] . 
 

12= sDkgLn] s/ r'Qmf k|df)fkq k|fKt u/]sf] cf=j= tyf To:tf] r'Qmf k|df)fkq k|fKt x'g 

af¤sLcf=j= / ;f] ;DaGwL ljj/)fsf ;fy]} cl#Nnf] cf= j= x?sf] s/ hl/jfgf Aofh afkt 

bfjLk/]sf] / o; cf=j=df e'QmfgL ePsf] /sd 

cfly{s jif{ 2071.72 ;Ddsf] cfos/ &"nf s/bftf sfof{nojf^ km%f}{^ eO{;s]sf] % . 

>L &"nf s/bftf sfof{non] u/]sf] s/ lgwf{/)f cg';f/ cf= j= 2071.72 sf] 

?=10,97,385.86 -cfos/, d"= c= s/, z'Ns / Jofh ;d]t_ o; jif{ yk bfloTj >[hgf 

ePsf]df ;Dk")f{ /sdnfO{ gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fj cGtu{t ljut jif{sf] vr{x?df n]vf°g 

ul/Psf] % 
 

13= lkmtf{ u/]sf] aLdfz'Nssf] kl/df)f / sf/)f 

o; aif{df ?=1,23,22,568 -ut aif{ ?= 11,52,25,715_ a/fa/sf] sún ljdfzÚNs lkmtf{ 

ul/Psf] % . ljdfzÚNs lkmtf{ u/]sf] sf/)fx? o;k|sf/ %g\ . 

-s_ ljldtsf] cgÚ/f]wdf ljdf+s /sd #^fPsf] . 

-v_  ljdfn]vdf jxg u/]sf] hf]lvd x^fPsf] . 
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-u_ xjfO{ jLdfdf bfjL gu/] jfktsf] %'^ k"glj{dsjf^ k|fKt ePsf]df lkmtf{ u/]sf] . 

-#_  leiff gkfPsf] sf/)fn] ^«fen d]l*sn O{G:of]/]G;sf] ljdfn]v /@ u/]sf] .  

-Ñ_ ;xjLdssf] lx:;f ;DjlGwt jLdsnfO{ lkmtf{ ul/Psf] % . 

 

14= ckn]vg ug{ jf+sL vr{ g/x]sf] . 

 

15= r¤'Qmf k"¤hLdWo] clu|d e'QmfgL k|fKt (Paid in advance), e'QmfgL k|fKt x'g af¤sL (Call in       

arrears)/ hkmt ul/Psf t/ k'gM lgisfzg gul/Psf z]o/sf] ljj/)f - %}g . 

 

16= lnh xf]N* ;DklQdf ut cfly{s jif{;Dd / o; cfly{s jif{ vr{ (Amortization) n]lvPsf] 

/sdsf] ljj/)f-%}g . 

 

17= jif{el/df ePsf] jf;nft aflx/sf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/)f - %}g . 

 

18= c;dfKt hf]lvd Joj:yf 

 

lghL{jg aLdf Joj;fosf] v'b aLdf z'Nssf] 50 k|ltzt /sd c;dfKt hf]lvd Joj:yfdf 

;fl/Psf] % . ut jif{sf] o:tf] Joj:yfsf] /sd o; jif{ cfDbfgL hgfOPsf] % . t/ 

;fd'lb|s aLdf tkm{ tLg jif{ gf#]sf] /sddfq cfDbfgL hgfpg] ul/Psf] % . 

 

19=  ;DalGwt kIfx? ;+usf] sf/f]af/ ( Related Party Transactions) 

o; sDkgLsf] pRr Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t cWoIf, ;+rfnsx? / k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 

o; k|sf/ %g\ M 

 dx]Gb| s[i)F>]i&  - cWoIf 

 las|d s[i)F >]i& - ;+rfns 

 lalht s[i)F >]i& - ;+rfns 

 cho /Tg :yflkt - ;+rfns 

 g'/f s'df/L zdf{ - ;+rfns 

 bz/y nfn >]i& - ;+rfns -:jtGq_  

 ;'zLn jh|frfo{  - k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 

 

d'Vo Joj:yfkg kwflwsf/Lx?nfO{ k|bfg ul/Psf] kfl/>flds tyf ;'ljwfx?M 

o; aif{ k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ af]g; ;lxt ?=49,66,799 -ut aif{                

?= 37,55,344_ e'QmfgL u/]sf] % . pk/f]Qm jfx]s lgo'QmLsf] zt{ adf]lhd lghnfO{ ;jf/L 

;fwg tyf cGo ;'lawfx? sDkgLn] k|bfg u/]sf] % . 
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d'Vo Joj:yfkgsf kbflwsf/L ;+u ePsf] sf/f]af/ 

sDkgL tyf d'Vo Joj:yfkgsfkwflwsf/Lx? ljr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] lgldQ o; aif{ lgDg 

vr{x? e'QmfgL ul/Psf] % . 

        /sd ?= df 

sf/f]jf/sf] lsl;d o; jif{ ut jif{ 

a}&s eQfsf] e'QmfgL 9,19,500 11,01,500 

cGo vr{ tyf ;'ljwf -  

 d'Vo Joj:yfkgsf kbflwsf/Lx? ;+u cGo s'g} k|sf/sf] sf/f]af/ gePsf] . 

 

20= aLdf ;]jf z'Ns  

s'n aLdf z'Nssf] 1 k|ltzt ;]jf z'Ns jfkt aLdf ;ldltnfO{ e'QmfgL ug]{ u/L n]vf°g 

ul/Psf] % . ;f] z'Ns jfkt k'gaL{dsaf^ cz'nL ePsf] s§f u/L af¤sL k|To]s aLdfsf] 

cfo Joo lx;fadf vr{ n]vf°g ul/Psf] % . 

 

21= sd{rf/L cfjf; ;'ljwf 

sd{rf/L cfjf; ;'ljwfjfkt /sd %'§fOPsf] %}g . 

 

22= r'Qmf k"¤hLdf ePsf] kl/jt{g 

 

cfly{s jif{ clws[t k"+lh ?= hf/L k"+lh  

?= 

r'Qmf k"+lh  

?= 

s}lkmot 

2050/051 8,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000  

2064/065 16,00,00,000 12,00,00,000 6,30,00,000 110% n] jf]g; z]o/ yk 

ePsf] 

2065/066 16,00,00,000 12,00,00,000 10,08,00,000 60% xsk|b z]o/ hf/L 

ePsf] 

2069/070 50,00,00,000 25,00,00,000 10,08,00,000 k|jGwkq / lgodfjnLdf 

;+zf]wg u/]sf] 

2070/071 50,00,00,000 25,00,00,000 25,00,00,000 148%xsk|b z]o/ hf/L 

ePsf] 

2071/072 50,00,00,000 26,75,00,000 26,75,00,000 7% n] jf]gz z]o/ yk 

ePsf] 

2072/073 50,00,00,000 32,10,00,000 32,10,00,000 20% n] jf]gz z]o/ yk 

ePsf] 

2073/074 2,00,00,00,000 1,02,72,00,000 38,52,00,000 20% n] jf]gz z]o/ yk 

ePsf] 

2074/075 2,00,00,00,000 1,02,72,00,000 1,02,72,00,000 166=67% n] xsk|b z]o/ 

hf/L ePsf] 

 

23= sd{rf/L jf]g; Joj:yf 

o; cfly{s jif{df GAAP / NFRS dWo] GAAP tkm{sf] gfkmf sd ePsfn] GAAP cg';f/sf] 

s/ cl#sf] v'b gfkmfdf 10 k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd ?=3,20,71,762 sd{rf/L jf]g; 

Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . 
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24= Profit Commission 

k"glj{dsjf^ gub jf sgkmd{];g k|fKt ePkl% Profit Commission cfDbfgL jfWg] ul/Psf] % 

.o;cfly{s jif{ Profit Commission jfkt s'g} /sd k|fKt ePsf] %}g . 

 

25=  :yug s/ (Deferred Tax) 

 :yug s/ ;DklQ / bfloTjsf] u)fgf cfíf( 32, 2076 sf] ljj/)f lgDgfg';f/ 

 /x]sf] % M  

 

:yug s/ ;DklQ -bfloTj_ 

ljj/)f o; aif{ ut aif{ 

:yug s/ ;DklQ (Deferred Tax Assets)   
l:y/ ;DklQ   
pkbfg Joj:yf 1,31,24,88

8 
1,38,87,09

7 
ljbf jfkt Joj:yf    19,88,568 19,88,567 
;[hgf ePsf] t/ hfgsf/Ldf gcfPsf] bfjLsf] ( IBNR) 

Joj:yf 

- 19,23,888 

nufgLdf ul/Psf]] Joj:yf 10,72,924 13,18,389 

hDdf :yug s/ ;DklQ (Deferred Tax Assets) 1,61,86,380 1,91,17,941 
   
:yug s/ bfloTj(Deferred Tax Liabilities)   
l:y/ ;DklQdf (47,888) (2,58,147) 
ljsfz C)fkqdf lk|ldod - - 

hDdf :yug s/ bfloTj(Deferred Tax Liabilities) (47,888) (2,58,147) 
v'b :yug s/ ;DklQ 1,61,38,492 1,88,59,79

4 
 

;+sf:kb c;fdL jfkt Joj:yf cl#  u/]sf] /sddf :yug s/ lx;fj ul/Psf] %}g . 

 

26=  dxfljkQL hu]*f sf]if 

 sDkgLn] dxfljkQLsf] nflu k"glj{df ug]{ Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . o; jif{sf] gfkmfjf^

 jf*kmf+* lx;fjdf ;f/]sf] /sdsf] 10 k|ltzt ?=98,69,378 o; jif{ yk ul/ cf= j= 

 2075/076,sf] cfiff( d;fGtdf ?=4,27,23,770 hDdf ePsf] % . 

 

27= pkbfg sf]if 

 sd{rf/Lsf] pkbfg tyf ljbf afkt Joj:yf k|f]befljsf] (Accrual) cfwf/df n]vf°g ul/ 

 gful/s nufgL sf]ifdf hDdf ul/Psf] /sd cg';"rL-21 df cGo ;DkQLdf b]vfO{sf] % . 

 

28= g]kfn k"glj{df sDkgL lnld ]̂* / O{G:of]/]G; O{lG:^Ro"^ g]kfndf ul/Psf] nufgL 

g]kfn k"glj{df sDkgL lnld ]̂*df ul/Psf] nufgL ?=16,18,16,800 / O{G:of]/]G; O{lG:^Ro"^ 

g]kfndf ul/Psf] nufgL ?=2,00,000 nfO{ z]o/ nufgL cGtu{t  b]vfO{Psf] % . 
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29= jf;nftdf jiff{Gtsf] Ps jif{ leqdf Dofb ;lsg] nufgLnfO{ cNksfnLg / ;f] cjwL kl% 

 Dofb ;lsg] nufgLnfO{ bL#{sfnLg nufgLdf b]vfO{Psf] % . 

  

30= cfos/ Joj:yf 

 cfos/ P]g, 2058 / ;f] P]g cGtu{t jg]sf] lgod cg';f/ sfod ePsf] s/of]Uo cfosf] 

 cfwf/df cfos/ u)fgf ul/ o; jif{ cfos/ jfkt ?=83,620,934 Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . 

  

31= k|:tfljt nfef+; 

 sDkgLsf] ;+rfns ;ldltjf^ k|:tfj ul/Psf] r'Qmf k"hL+sf] 4 k|ltzt jf]gz z]o/ ?= 

 ?=4,10,88,000 tyf ;f] /sddf nfUg] s/ ;d]t ul/ r'Qmf k"hL+sf] 3=75 k|ltzt 

 ?=3,85,20,000 gub nfef+; jLdf ;ldlt tyf sDkgLsf] ;fwf/)f ;efjf^ kfl/t ul/P 

 kZrft\ ljt/)f ul/g] % .  

>L jLdf ;ldltsf] u}/:ynut ;'kl/j]If)f 197 -2076.077_ r= g+= 352 ldlt 2076 

df# 8 ut]sf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ Excess of Net Profit as per NFRS & GAAP  ?=3,48,05,146.00 

lgodgsf/L sf]ifdf k&fpg kg]{ ePsfn] k'/fgf] k|:tfljt nfef+; #^\g uO{ xfn gub nfef+; 

?=38,52,000.00 / jf]g; z]o/ 4,10,88,000.00 x'g uPsf] % . 

 

32= g]kfn ljlQo k|ltj]bgdfg -NFRS_ 

>L jLdf ;ldlt ¢f/f g]kfn ljlQo k|ltj]bgdfg -NFRS_ ;Dk")f{ jLdf sDkgLx?nfO{ cfly{s 

jif{ 2074.75 b]lv clgjfo{ ?kdf nfu' ul/Psfn] o; jif{ klg ;f] df cfwfl/t %'§} 

ljlQo ljj/)f tof/ ul/Psf] % .  

  

 >L jLdf ;ldltsf] ldlt 2075.06.11 ut]sf] lgb]{zg jdf]lhd o; sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{ 

 2074.75 b]lv jLdf ;ldltn] hf/L u/]sf] lghL{jg jLdf Joj;fo ug]{ jLdssf] ljlQo 

 ljj/)f ;DjlGw lgb]{zg jdf]lhd Nepal Standards on Auditing -800 Special Consideration - 

 Audit of Financial Statement Prepared in Accordance with Special Purpose Frameworks cGtu{t 

 x'g] n]vfk/LIf)f k|ltj]bg ;lxt jLdf ;ldltdf l:js[tLsf] nflu of] ljlQo ljj/)f tof/ 

 ul/Psf] % . 

 

33= GAAP based Financial Statement df kl/dflh{t ePsf] sf/)fx? pNn]lvt ;lxtsf] gfkmf 

gf]Szfg lx;fasf] reconciliation: 

>L jLdf ;ldltsf] u}/:ynut ;'kl/j]If)f 197 -2076.077_ r= g+= 352 ldlt 2076 

df# 8 ut]sf] lgb]{zg cg';f/, GAAP based Financial Statement df revision ePsf] sf/)fx? 

pNn]lvt ;lxtsf] reconciliation statement k|:t't ul/Psf] % . 
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gfkmf gf]Szfg lx;fasf] reconciliation: 

v'b gfkmf -cl#Nnf] ljj/)f cg';f/_  202,425,460  

dfOs|f] OG:of]/]G; Joj:yfkg vr{ - 126,762_  

dfOs|f] OG:of]/]G; bfaL vr{  -289,205_  

;]jf z'Ns - 1,731_  

lj!fkg vr{ q'l^ ;RofOPsf]  -51,300_  

c;dfKt hf]lvd jfktsf] Joj:yfdf ePsf] kl/jt{g   -86,575_  

cl#Nnf] jif{sf] cfDbfgLdf b]vfO{sf] n#' aLdf z'Ns  189,028  

o;kfnLsf] n#' aLdf cfo Aoo lx;fadf b]vfOPsf] n#' aLdf 

z'Ns 

 173,150  

aLdf ;ldltsf] lgb{]zgn] sd{rf/L af]g;df k/]sf] k|efj   19,340  

aLdf ;ldltsf] lgb{]zgn] sd{rf/L af]g;df k/]sf] k|efj   52,217  

cl#Nnf] jif{sf] cfDbfgLdf b]vfO{sf] n#' aLdf z'Ns  433,735  

v'b gfkmf - kl/dflh{t ljj/)f cg';f/_  202,303,622  

 

;+lrt gfkmf gf]Szfg lx;fasf] reconciliation: 

  

;+lrt gfkmf -cl#Nnf] ljj/)f cg';f/_ 87,481,552 

k|:tfljt z]o/ nfef+zdf kg{] uPsf km/s 10,272,000  

o; jif{sf] v'b d'gfkmfsf] kg{] uPsf km/s -121,839_ 

aLdf sf]ifdf kg{{ uPsf] kg{] uPsf km/s          

60920 

dxfljklQ hu]*f sf]ifdf kg{] uPsf] km/s 6091 

k|:tfljt gub nfef+zdf kg{{ uPsf] km/s 17,976,000 

;+lrt gfkmf - kl/dflh{t ljj/)f cg';f/_ 115,674,724 

 

34=  2076 ;fn ciff( d;fGtdf k|fKt s]xL lk|ldod r]sx?, 2076 ;fn >fj)f dlxgfdf 

hDdfePsf] dWo >fj)f 7 ut] kl%sf ldltx?df hDdf x'g uPsf] /sd ? 9,17,585 

nfO{ cGo Joj:yf cGtu{t Joj:yf ul/ ;dfof]hg ul/Psf] % . 

      

35= k};fnfO{ lgs \̂d ?k}of+df k/L)ft u/L b]vfOPsf] % . 

 

36= ut cfly{s jif{sf] c°nfO{ cfjZostf cg';f/ k'gM jlu{s/)f ul/Psf] % .  
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k|jGwkqdf ;+zf]wg 

bkmf 5 -v_ sDkgLsf] k"+hLsf] ;+/rgf 

;fljssf] Joj:yf ;+zf]lwt Joj:yf ;+zf]wg ug'{kg]{ sf/)f 

-v_ sDkgLsf] hf/L k"+hL  ?= 

102,72,00,000 -?= Ps cj{ b'O{ 

s/f]* jxQ/ nfv_ x'g]% . k|lt z]o/ 

?100 -Ps ;o_ sf b/n] 

1,02,72,000 -Ps s/f]* b'O{ nfv 

jxQ/ xhf/_ ;fwf/)f z]o/df 

ljeflht ul/Psf] % ;fy} r'Qmf k"+hL 

klg ?= 102,72,00,000 -?= Ps 

cj{ b'O{ s/f]* jxQ/ nfv_ x'g]% . 

-v_ sDkgLsf] hf/L k"+hL  ?= 

106,82,88,000 -?= Ps cj{  % 

s/f]* jof;L nfv c&f;L xhf/_ 

x'g]% . k|lt z]o/ ?100 -Ps ;o_ 

sf b/n] 1,06,82,880 -Ps s/f]* 

% nfv jof;L xhf/ cf& ;o c;L_ 

;fwf/)f z]o/df ljeflht ul/Psf] 

% ;fy} r'Qmf k"+hL klg ?= 

106,82,88,000 -?= Ps cj{  % 

s/f]* jof;L nfv c&f;L xhf/_ 

x'g]% . 

jf]g; z]o/ hf/L ePkl% 

hf/L tyf r'Qmf k"+hL j[WbL 

ug{ kg]{ ePsfn] . 

 

 

 

 

 

 

lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg 
 

lgod 6 -v_ sDkgLsf] k"+hLsf] ;+/rgfM 

 

;fljssf] Joj:yf ;+zf]lwt Joj:yf ;+zf]wg ug'{kg]{ sf/)f 

6 -v_ sDkgLsf] clws[t k'+hL ? 

2,00,00,00,000. -?= b'O{ cj{_ 

x'g]% . ?=102,72,00,000. -?= Ps 

cj{ b'O{ s/f]* jxQ/ nfv_ hf/L 

k"+hL x'g] % . ;fy} r'Qmf k"+hL klg 

?=102,72,00,000. -?= Ps cj{ b'O{ 

s/f]* jxQ/ nfv_ ;Dd x'g] % . 

 

19 -  

sDkgLsf] clws[t k'+hL ? 

2,00,00,00,000. -?= b'O{ cj{_ x'g]% 

. ?= 106,82,88,000 -?= Ps cj{  

% s/f]* jof;L nfv c&f;L xhf/_ 

hf/L k"+hL x'g] % . ;fy} r'Qmf k"+hL 

klg ?= 106,82,88,000 -?= Ps cj{  

% s/f]* jof;L nfv c&f;L xhf/_ 

;Dd x'g] % . 

jf]g; z]o/ hf/L 

ePkl% hf/L tyf r'Qmf 

k"+hL j[WbL ug{ kg]{ 

ePsfn] . 

 

 

 

 

 

lgod 18= ;+rfns ;ldltsf] 

sfo{ljwL -%_ gePsf] 

-%_ ;+rfnssf] ;'ljwfM ;+rfnsn] 

j}&sdf pkl:yt eP jfkt kfpg] j}&s 

eQf  cWoIfn] k|lt j}&s ?=8,000. -

?= cf& xhf/_ / cGo ;+rfnsx?n] 

?=7,000. -?= ;ft xhf/_ sf b/n] 

tyf ;ldlt / pk;ldltsf ;+of]hs / 

;b:ox?n] ;d]t ;+rfns ;/x j}&s 

eQf x'g] % . 

>L jLdf ;ldltjf^ 

hf/L ljdssf] ;:yfut 

;'zf;g ;DjlGw 

lgb]{lzsf, 2075 sf] 

lgb]{zg 10 -1_ df 

Joj:yf ePsfn] yk 

ul/Psf] . 
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